Southwest Power Pool
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
April 9, 2018
Kansas City, MO
•

M INUT E S

•

Administrative Items
Chair Larry Altenbaumer called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. The following individuals participated in the
meeting.
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Sandra Bennett (phone)
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Mike Wise
Tom Dunn
Others attending included:
Traci Bender (phone)
Ray Bergmeier
Phyllis Bernard
Dianne Branch
Nick Brown (phone)
Denise Buffington
Cynthia Burns
Holly Carias
Patrick Clarey (phone)
Graham Edwards (phone)
Darren Ives
Jim Jacoby
Rob Janssen
Carl Monroe
Chad Moore
Jerry Peace
Dennis Reed
Scott Smith

SPP Director
SPP Director
AEP
Westar Energy
Lincoln Electric
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative
SPP
NPPD
Sunflower Electric
SPP Director
SPP
SPP
KCPL
BKD, LLC
NextEra Energy Resources
FERC
SPP Director
KCPL
AEP
Dogwood Energy
SPP
BKD, LLC
OG&E
Consultant
SPP

Minutes from the January 15, 2018 and February 27, 2018 meetings were reviewed. Kelly Harrison motioned to
approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by Bruce Scherr and approved by unanimous voice vote.

2017 Financial Audit
Dianne Branch and Chad Moore presented the results of the 2017 financial report audit. Dianne Branch covered
highlights on the financial statements and related footnotes. Chad Moore presented the audit opinion letter and the
management letter. The audit opinion was unqualified and no exceptions were noted in the management letter.
Following this presentation, SPP staff was dismissed from the meeting as the Committee went into executive session
with BKD, LLC.
Following executive session, Bruce Scherr made a motion to accept the audit report as presented and recommend
approval of the audit report to the SPP Board of Directors. The motion was seconded by Laura Kapustka and
approved by unanimous voice vote.
The Committee next discussed continuing the engagement of BKD and Thomas & Thomas for the 2018 financial
audit and benefit plan audits, respectively. Kelly Harrison made a motion to engage BKD to perform an audit of
SPP’s 2018 financial statements and Thomas & Thomas to perform audits of SPP’s benefit plans for 2018. The
motion was seconded by Mike Wise and approved by unanimous voice vote. The Committee intends to issue a
request for proposal for the 2019 audits (financial, benefit plans, and controls).
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2018 Benefit Plan Funding
The Committee reviewed the actuary reports prepared by Osborn, Carreiro & Associates on both the SPP Retirement
Plan and the SPP Post-retirement Healthcare Plan.
SPP staff recommended $4.50 million in contributions to the SPP Retirement Plan in 2018, consistent with the
suggested contribution calculation of the actuary. The SPP 2018 budget included $5.90 million in funding.
SPP staff recommended $0.00 million in contributions to the SPP Post-retirement Healthcare Plan in 2018. The SPP
2017 budget included $0.00 million in funding.
Bruce Scherr made a motion to contribute $4.50 million to the SPP Retirement Plan and $0.00 million to the SPP
Post-retirement Healthcare Plan during 2018. The motion was seconded by Mike Wise and approved by unanimous
voice vote.
The Committee intends to invite the chair and staff secretary of the SPP Human Resources Committee to attend the
July Finance Committee meeting to discuss the structure of the pension and retirement plans and evaluate
opportunities to enhance the affordability of the plans.

New Debt Issuance
SPP staff outlined a strategy for SPP’s 2018 $80 million note issuance which would allow SPP to fund its capital
expenditure program for the next five years, minimize the amount of idle cash on SPP’s balance sheet while capital
assets are being acquired and lock in spreads over treasuries for issuance of term notes over the next five years.
The issuance would consist of a committed revolving line of credit in the amount of $80 million. Annually, SPP would
convert any funds outstanding under the line of credit to fixed rate term notes at a predetermined credit spread over
like term treasuries. The term notes would fully amortize over the next four years. As the term notes amortized, the
retired amount of principal under the term notes would be available to be re-advanced under the revolving guidance
line. All notes will be unsecured. SPP will be subject to a minimum fixed charge coverage covenant of 1:1,
measured at the end of each fiscal year. The covenant is consisted with that used in all of SPP’s debt issuances.
Bruce Scherr motioned to approve the recommended loan structure as presented, authorize SPP to seek regulatory
approval of the note issuance, and authorize the CEO and CFO of SPP to execute and deliver any and all loan
commitments, agreements, statements and other documents associated with the issuance. The motion was
seconded by Laura Kapustka and approved by unanimous voice vote.

Administrative Fee Recovery Changes
SPP staff presented a recommendation outlining a process, guiding principles, and a timeline for implementing a
change to SPP’s Schedule 1A administrative fee billing. The Committee discussed, at length, opportunities and a
desire to engage a broader group of stakeholders beyond those who are members of, or participate at meetings of,
the SPP Finance Committee. SPP staff and the chair of the Finance Committee were charged with reaching out to
the leadership of the SPP Markets and Operations Policy Committee to engage their thoughts in how to gain broader
stakeholder input on this topic and move this initiative forward.

Topics for Finance Committee Development Meeting
The Committee members discussed several topics for a more in-depth development meeting to be held in June. Two
topics garnering the most interest were SPP employee benefit plans (particularly retirement plans) and SPP
organizational effectiveness (encompasses process improvement efforts, cost control, transparency). This meeting
was scheduled for June 12-13, 2018 but will be rescheduled to ensure availability by all Committee members.

Finance Committee Self-assessment
Larry Altenbaumer reviewed the results of the organizational group effectiveness survey specific to the SPP Finance
Committee. A few comments from the survey suggested improving linkages between the Finance Committee and the
MOPC. The Finance Committee is continuing to work to improve those linkages.

Review of Past Action Items
SPP staff reviewed written reports on several past action items. SPP management reported it had reduced the
amount of excess liability insurance carried to $55MM (from $75MM) and used the savings in premiums to acquired
$20MM in cyber liability insurance policies. One key takeaway was for SPP staff to evaluate options to broaden
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errors and omission insurance coverage to address significant services SPP provides that are not required under the
tariff or other covered agreements.

Future Meetings
The next meeting of the Finance Committee was scheduled for June 12-13, 2018 in Little Rock, AR. This meeting is
being rescheduled to ensure full participation by the Committee members.
There being no further business, Larry Altenbaumer adjourned the meeting at 5pm.
Respectfully Submitted,

Thomas P. Dunn
Secretary
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Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is scheduled to meet on April 9, 2018 at the Intercontinental Hotel Country Club
Plaza in Kansas City, Missouri. The meeting is scheduled to begin at 8:00 a.m. and conclude by 3:00 p.m.
I have provided some commentary for each of the primary agenda items; the agenda is attached for
your reference.
Agenda Item #2 – 2017 Financial Audit – ACTION ITEM
i.

ii.

iii.

The primary action item is for the Committee to receive the report of the independent
auditor, BKD for the year-ended 2017. This will include the financial report along with the
auditor’s opinion and the associated management letter. We will also allow time for an
executive session with the auditor. This is a clean audit with no issues.
We will also discuss the auditor engagement for 2018. Management is recommending that
SPP continue to use BKD for the financial audit and Thomas & Thomas for the benefit plan
audits. 2018 will be the sixth year since SPP put the work out to bid, and while I am
comfortable with management’s recommendation, I would like to discuss the consideration
of issuing an RFP for the next cycle of these audits.
We have been advised that Barrett Breeding, the lead on SPP’s audit, has left BKD. Further,
Keith Conine, the partner on the engagement, will be leaving in 2019. Management will
update the Committee on its assessment of BKD’s plans to support the SPP engagement for
2018.

Agenda Item #3 – 2018 Benefit Plan Funding – ACTION ITEM
At our last meeting we reviewed and approved SPP staff’s recommendations for the four
primary assumptions required for pension accounting and valuation: i) discount rate – staff
recommended a discount rate of 5.00% in accordance with SPP’s process for determining the
discount rate assumption; ii) investment rate of return – staff recommends remaining at 7.00%
long-term rate of return; iii) rate of compensation change – staff recommends remaining at
4.00% iv) staff recommended utilizing the current IRS mortality tables in accordance with
Finance Committee directives from December 2015.
We will receive the annual report from the actuary which utilized these assumptions in
addressing the funding status of the pension plan and outlining considerations for the funding
level for 2018.
Agenda Item #4 – New Debt Issuance – ACTION ITEM
Management will present its discussion and recommendation regarding the issuance of new
debt for supporting general corporate obligations and funding support for the prospective
Mountain West integration effort.
Management is proposing an $80 million senior unsecured committed facility with an annual
term-out option. Management will address the use of this financing for the Mountain West

integration and how this financing ties in with additional financing requirements over the next
few years. Management will also discuss the process for the selection of the proposed lending
group and the lead bank, Arvest bank.
Agenda Item #5 – Administrative Fee Recovery Changes – ACTION ITEM
Management is recommending for Board approval the broad policy regarding changes in the
current Administrative Fee. These broad policy guidelines are:
•
•
•
•

Charge all SPP administrative costs against energy settled in the market;
Utilize a single, bundled rate;
Set the rate annually based on the budget and the forecast energy to be settled in the
market; and
Provide for rate adjustments during the year to maintain appropriate balance given
normal variations in collections.

Management will also outline the proposed timeline for the proposed project and will
recommend which various stakeholder groups are expected to be significantly engaged in the
implementation of this proposal.
Discussion will also address the timing of this proposed project and possible considerations of
how it fits with the timing of the proposed Mountain West integration.
Agenda Item #6 – Topics for June Session
The June meeting of the Finance Committee is primarily focused on a development meeting to
do a deeper dive into topics that the Committee is interested in and which they believe will be
beneficial to helping achieve a better performing, more effective Finance Committee.
We have set time aside over lunch to discuss ideas that Committee members might have. Tom
and I have also discussed this and, based on comments we’ve heard- both in the Finance
Committee and elsewhere, we would suggest the following as a suggested primary topic for
June.
Operational Effectiveness of SPP - Increasingly we hear from our Members that the
continuing increase in costs (administrative fee) is creating challenges with Members’
leadership and with their regulators. While SPP has strived to develop its budget in a
transparent manner with the participation of other stakeholder groups (Strategic
Planning and MOPC), the frequency and level of the concerns that have been raised
continue to escalate.
The purpose of the deep dive would be to seek input from Members, including selected
Members who are not represented on the Committee, to identify actions that SPP
should consider to (among others):
•
•
•

Improve its effectiveness (quality, cost, timeliness);
Identify and incorporate best practices;
Ensure that the work that is being done needs to be done (provides a
meaningful benefit to Members);

•
•

Enhance the transparency and improve the communication of actions related to
the budget development process; and
Better educate and engage the stakeholders in SPP’s the understanding of the
work performed by SPP and the financial requirements necessary to support
this work.

Agenda Item #7 – Finance Committee Self-Assessment
This is a carry-over item from the last meeting and will consider the results of the stakeholder
survey that was conducted late in 2017 in an effort to identify specific opportunities for the
improvement in the performance of the Finance Committee.
Agenda Item #8 – Review of Past Action Items
There are five action items reflecting follow-ups from previous meetings that will be addressed;
specifically:
•

•

•

•

•

Liability insurance coverage levels - Management will brief the Committee on its
conclusions regarding excess liability coverage and the introduction of cyber policy
options.
Excess liability insurance review - Management will present findings from SPP’s in-house
legal staff discussing indemnification provisions provided by the tariff and how the
excess policy fits into these provisions.
MOPC presentation by Finance Committee - The planned Finance Committee
presentation for its MOPC agenda item will focus on how SPP prioritizes its project
work; this is in response to a question raised by John Olsen at the January meeting.
Investment Policy Statement proposed changes - At our January meeting, the
Committee discussed some of the details that were proposed by management for
refining the investment policy statement. Management will address the Committee’s
comments as part of this further discussion.
SPP controls and processes for MWTG implementation - Much of this was covered in the
Finance Committee teleconference call in February. This will be reviewed at this
meeting for any additional questions or comments.

I hope this outline is helpful; please let me know what can be done to improve it for future meetings. I
look forward to seeing you in Kansas City next week.

Larry Altenbaumer
Chair, Finance Committee

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
April 9, 2018
Intercontinental Hotel Country Club Plaza – Kansas City, MO
• AGENDA •
8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.
1.

Administrative Items (15 minutes) ............................................................................................... Larry Altenbaumer
a.

2.

Approval of Minutes ............................................................................................................ Tom Dunn

2017 Financial Audit (60 minutes) **ACTION** ...................................................................... Dianne Branch / BKD
a.
b.
c.

Financial Report, Auditor Opinion, Management Letter, Executive Session
Auditor Engagement For 2018
Partner Rotation

3.

2018 Benefit Plan Funding (30 minutes) **ACTION** .............................................................................. Tom Dunn

4.

New Debt Issuance (60 minutes) **ACTION** .................................................................... Scott Smith / Tom Dunn

5.

Administrative Fee Recovery Changes (60 minutes) **ACTION** ........................................................... Tom Dunn

6.

Lunch – Topics for June Session (45 minutes) ..................................................................................................... All

7.

Finance Committee Self-Assessment (30 minutes) .................................................................... Larry Altenbaumer

8.

Review of Past Action Items (60 minutes).................................................................................................................
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

9.

Liability insurance coverage levels
Excess liability insurance review
MOPC Presentation by Finance Committee
Investment Policy Statement proposed changes
SPP controls and processes for MWTG implementation

Written Reports .........................................................................................................................................................
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

February 2018 Financials
Settlements System Project Status
Financial, Settlements, and Credit Metrics
SPP Portfolio Report
CPWG Status Report

10. Future Meetings ........................................................................................................................................................

Antitrust: SPP strictly prohibits use of participation in SPP activities as a forum for engaging in practices or communications that
violate the antitrust laws. Please avoid discussion of topics or behavior that would result in anti-competitive behavior, including but
not limited to, agreements between or among competitors regarding prices, bid and offer practices, availability of service, product
design, terms of sale, division of markets, allocation of customers or any other activity that might unreasonably restrain competition.

Southwest Power Pool
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
January 15, 2018
Little Rock, AR
•

M INUT E S

•

Administrative Items
Chair Larry Altenbaumer called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. The following individuals participated in the
meeting.
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Kelly Harrison (phone)
Laura Kapustka
Mike Wise
Sandra Bennett
Tom Dunn
Others attending included:
Traci Bender (phone)
Jerry Peace
Denise Buffington
Jim Jacoby
Rob Janssen
Ronald Chartier
Shawnee Claiborn-Pinto
Jeff Bieker (phone)
Phyllis Bernard
Nick Brown
Carl Monroe
Scott Smith
David Kelly (phone)
Barrett Breeding (phone)
Stan Payne (phone)
Matt Jones (phone)
Kevin McBride (phone)
Jim Goss (phone)
Sam Nobles (phone)

SPP Director
SPP Director
Westar Energy
Lincoln Electric
Golden Spread Electric Cooperative
AEP
SPP
NPPD
OG&E
KCPL
AEP
Dogwood Energy
Sunflower Electric
PUCT
Sunflower Electric
SPP Director
SPP
SPP
SPP
SPP
BKD, LLC
Stephens Insurance
Stephens Insurance
Stephens Insurance
Stephens Insurance
Stephens Insurance

Minutes from the October 30, 2017 meeting were reviewed. Mike Wise motioned to approve the minutes. The motion
was seconded by Bruce Scherr and approved by unanimous voice vote. Staff provided a brief review of action items
from prior meetings. Staff also provided commentary on the 2017 fiscal year financial results noting that themes
discussed in prior meetings (higher revenue due to strong 4Q’16 peak demand, salary & benefits expenses impacted
by lower headcount vacancy, lower maintenance expense due to slower capital expenditures, and lower outside
services engagement due to lack of competitive transmission projects resulting in no need to engage the independent
expert panel) continued to hold true through the end of the year.

2017 Financial Audit – Pre-audit Discussion
Barrett Breeding of BKD, LLC presented the 2017 financial audit plan identifying significant focus areas
for the audit and seeking input from the Committee on other areas which the Committee would like
audited. BKD was asked to provide more detailed information on interest rate swap valuations in light of
expected interest rate volatility.
The Committee dismissed SPP staff and convened a brief executive session with BKD, LLC.
Corporate Liability Insurance
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Representatives from Stephens Insurance, LLC provided an overview of the property & casualty,
professional liability and director and officer insurance markets. In general, they expect renewal
premiums across most lines to be flat with potential 10% increases expected in d&o and excess lines.
The full extent of catastrophic claims arising from 2017 hurricanes and wildfires is not clear yet and may
drive some liability increases.
Scott Smith presented an analysis of available cyber liability insurance policies available in the market
that are appropriate for SPP. SPP staff presented the Committee with a recommendation to purchase
$40 million of cyber liability coverage from AIG. Following the presentation and significant dialogue,
Laura Kapustka made a motion to approve the recommendation of staff. The motion was seconded by
Sandra Bennett and approved by unanimous voice vote.
Staff informed the Committee that purchase of cyber insurance was not included in the 2018 budget and,
to stay within budget, staff recommended eliminating the $40 million in excess liability insurance.
Following significant discussion, the Committee indicated SPP should at least carry no less excess
liability insurance as the lowest amount carried by other RTOs ($50 million). Staff was instructed to
negotiate insurance premiums to remain within budget but to not let the total excess liability coverage go
below $50 million and could even consider reducing the cyber insurance policy by $5 million.
Staff was instructed to present to the Committee a comprehensive review of the excess liability insurance
policy at the Committee’s next meeting.
Mountain West Transmission Group Implementation Budget
SPP staff shared with the Committee the draft incremental budget to cover the implementation of the
Mountain West Transmission Group. The Committee requested staff provide follow-up information
specific to the activities that would be subject to deferral during implementation and the expected total
amount of costs being deferred; and staff perform a sensitivity analysis of the deferred implementation
costs to illustrate the point where the deferred costs eliminate benefits for existing SPP members.
Actuary Assumption Review
SPP staff discussed its recommendations for the four primary assumptions required for pension
accounting and valuation: i) discount rate – staff recommended a discount rate of 5.00% in accordance
with SPP’s process for determining the discount rate assumption; ii) investment rate of return – staff
recommends remaining at 7.00% long-term rate of return; iii) rate of compensation change – staff
recommends remaining at 4.00% iv) staff recommended utilizing the current IRS mortality tables in
accordance with Finance Committee directives from December 2015.
Sandra Bennett made a motion to accept the assumptions presented by staff. The motion was seconded
by Mike Wise and approved by unanimous voice vote.
SPP Pension Plan Investment Policy Statement
SPP staff discussed changes to the pension fund’s investment policy statement being prepared for action by the SPP
Administrative Committee. The changes essentially clarify the Administrative Committee’s role as the Named
Fiduciary and further define permissible investments, ranges, and benchmarks. The Committee suggest staff
reconsider the level of detail in the permissible investments area.
Administrative Fee Recovery
SPP staff shared highlights from its initial conference with staff from the FERC regarding changes to the schedule 1A
recovery whereby market participants will be billed based on energy cleared in the Integrated Marketplace. The main
guidance from the FERC staff was to ensure SPP detailed how the proposed process remained just and reasonable.
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Future Meetings
The next meeting of the Finance Committee is scheduled for Monday April 9, 2018 in Kansas City, MO beginning at
8:00 a.m. and ending at 5:00 p.m.
There being no further business, Larry Altenbaumer adjourned the meeting at 5pm.
Respectfully Submitted,

Thomas P. Dunn
Secretary

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 24, 2018
2017 Financial Audit Acceptance

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Sandra Bennett
Mike Wise

SPP Director
SPP Director
Westar
Lincoln Electric
AEP
Golden Spread

Background
SPP annually engages a Certified Public Accounting firm to audit its financial statements and accounting controls.
SPP has engaged BKD, LLC to perform audits of its financial reports since fiscal year 2004. SPP last performed a
request for proposal for the financial audit engagement in July 2013.

Analysis
BKD, LLC has completed and published its audit of SPP’s 2017 financial statements. The Finance Committee, at its
April 9, 2018 meeting met with representatives of BKD, LLC and discussed their findings, specifically focusing on: 1)
adequacy of SPP’s accounting policies and procedures, 2) adequacy of internal control procedures and the extent
tested, and 3) any areas of weakness or concern that SPP should address going forward.
BKD’s opinion will be unqualified. No issues or material/significant weaknesses were noted during the audit. BKD
informed the Committee of upcoming changes in accounting standards.

Recommendation
The Finance Committee recommends the SPP Board of Directors accept in its entirety the 2017 audit report and
findings of BKD, LLC.

Approved:

SPP Finance Committee

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Balance Sheets (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash deposits
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other

524,038

Investments (Note 2 )
Other Assets, Net

D

75,715
223,964
63,702
9,291

372,672

4,812
67,650
10,380
52,007
177,480
2,844
4,876

4,812
67,338
10,211
46,210
170,701
5,205
4,876

320,049
240,275

309,353
216,663

79,774

92,690

24,456

10,835

5,499

4,628

30
3/

R
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T

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

See Notes to Financial Statements

$

/2

Total current assets

Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land
Building
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment and machinery
Software
Software in development
Equipment under capital lease

100,496
340,612
74,391
8,539

01

$

2016

8

2017

$

633,767

$

480,825

Liabilities and Members’ Deficit
2017

8

66,927
223,964
21,410
1,817
54,310
5,127

373,555

214,479
(803)

235,948
(898)

213,676

235,050

1,966

3,856

32,302

35,044

(156,721)

(166,680)

D
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Members’ Deficit

3/

Other Long-term Liabilities

$

542,544

30

Long-term Debt (Note 4 )
Less unamortized debt issuance costs

Obligation Under Capital Lease (Note 5 )

75,844
340,612
21,469
1,890
98,801
3,928

/2

Total current liabilities

$

2016

01

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 4 )
Current maturities of obligations under capital lease (Note 5 )
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

$

633,767

$

480,825

3

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Statements of Income (in Thousands)
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017
$

2016

190,343
6,278

171,464
5,131

176,595

01

196,621

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Employee travel
Administrative
Regulatory assessment
Meetings
Communications system
Maintenance
Consulting services
Depreciation

$

8

Operating Income
Tariff fees and member assessments
Other member services

90,186
1,919
4,764
18,648
974
3,915
14,775
15,065
58,025

183,971

208,271

12,650

(31,676)

234
(10,164)
789
(1,483)

191
(10,687)
682
(431)

(10,624)

(10,245)

Income (Loss) Before Unrealized Gain and Change in Funded
Status of Employee Benefit Plans

2,026

(41,921)

Unrealized Gain on Investments

1,499

659

6,434

3,998

30
3/

Operating Income (Loss)

/2

94,650
2,023
4,656
21,663
1,040
3,504
16,099
12,620
27,716

D
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Other Income (Expense)
Investment income
Interest expense
Change in fair market value of interest rate swaps
Other expense

Change in Funded Status of Employee Benefit Plans
Net Income (Loss)

See Notes to Financial Statements

$

9,959

$

(37,264)

4

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Statements of Members’ Deficit (in Thousands)
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017
(166,680)
9,959
$

(37,264)

(156,721)

$

(166,680)

D

R
AF
T

3/

30

/2

Balance, End of Year

(129,416)

01

Net income (loss)

$

8

$

Balance, Beginning of Year

2016

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows (in Thousands)
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

58,120
(3,998)
(659)
82
(682)

01
(10,689)
752
(871)
8,917
43,293
4,479

(23,912)
(871)
431
36,318
10,027
4,456

74,937

42,048

(14,807)
(12,216)
94

(14,317)
(825)
-

(26,929)

(15,142)

(21,409)
(1,818)
-

(23,603)
(591)
(16,000)
14,000
33,000

(23,227)

6,806

24,781

33,712

75,715

42,003

/2

R
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Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayments of capital lease obligation
Repayment of borrowings under line of credit
Borrowings under line of credit
Issuance of long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

D

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

(37,264)

8

9,959
27,813
(6,434)
(1,499)
6
(789)

3/

Investing Activities
Acquisition of property and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments

$

2016

30

Operating Activities
Net income (loss)
Items not requiring cash
Depreciation and amortization
Change in funded status of employee benefit plans
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Impairment loss
Change in fair market value of interest rate swaps
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other long-term liabilities

$

100,496

$

75,715

Interest paid on long-term debt (net of interest capitalized
of $63 and $121 in 2017 and 2016, respectively)

$

10,074

$

10,591

Property and equipment purchases in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities

$

3,149

$

1,991

Supplemental Cash Flows Information
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

01

8

Southwest Power Pool, Inc. (the Company) is a not-for-profit entity formed in 1941 and incorporated in
1994. The Company is a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)-approved regional transmission
organization (RTO) serving more than 17.5 million ultimate customers across all or parts of 14 states. The
Company’s membership consists of investor-owned utilities, municipal systems, generation and transmission
cooperatives, state authorities, federal agencies, independent power producers, contract participants, power
marketers and independent transmission companies.

30

Use of Estimates

/2

Major services provided by the Company to its members and customers include tariff administration,
reliability coordination, regional scheduling, market operations and regional transmission expansion
planning. Market operations encompass day-ahead and real-time markets, transmission congestion rights,
reliability unit commitment, operating reserve market and consolidated balancing authority.

3/

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Deposits

R
AF
T

The Company considers all highly liquid interest-earning investments with stated maturities and coupon rate
reset dates of no more than three months to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents, including restricted deposits, are invested primarily in money market
funds, mutual funds and repurchase agreements. These investments are typically revalued to the market each
day and, in the case of repurchase agreements, are collateralized by U.S. government and federal agency
securities. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of funds accumulated for general
operating purposes. Restricted cash deposits consist primarily of customer security deposits, amounts
deposited for engineering studies and funds set aside for disputed invoices.

Investments

D

The Company’s investments include equity and fixed income mutual funds and government securities.
These investments are recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as nonoperating
income. Dividends, interest income and realized gains and losses are reported as investment income. The
Company’s investments are intended to be utilized in funding benefits associated with the Company’s
postretirement health care plan and 457f deferred compensation plan in addition to maintaining collections
under Schedule 12 to be utilized for the annual FERC assessment.

Income Taxes
The Company is exempt from income taxes under Section 501c(6) of the Internal Revenue Code and a
similar provision of state law. However, the Company is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated
business taxable income.
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December 31, 2017 and 2016
Accounts Receivable

01

8

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to members, customers and others plus any accrued and
unpaid interest. The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts, when necessary, which is based
upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection information and existing economic conditions.
Accounts that are unpaid after the due date are subject to interest at a rate set by FERC. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was recorded at December 31, 2017. The Company had recorded an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $822 at December 31, 2016.

Property and Equipment

20 years
Shorter of useful life or remaining life of building
5 years
5 years
3 years
3 years

30

Building
Building improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles
Equipment and machinery
Software

/2

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life of each asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

3/

The Company capitalizes interest cost incurred on funds used to construct property, plant and equipment.
The capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is amortized over the asset’s
estimated useful life. Interest cost capitalized was $63 and $121 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

R
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The Company capitalizes development costs, including interest, for internal use software costs. These costs
are included in software in development. Management of the Company is of the opinion that all costs
capitalized in association with the software in development are fully recoverable over the anticipated life of
the asset.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment

D

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever events or
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-lived asset is tested for
recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset cost is adjusted to fair value and
an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds it
fair value.
No asset impairment was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2017. In 2016, the Company
recorded an impairment loss of $82 for previously capitalized costs associated with the development of an
engineering software tool. The amount is recorded as an impairment loss in the accompanying Statement of
Income and is included in other income (expense).

Revenue Recognition
Revenues, consisting of member assessments, tariff administrative fees, contract services and miscellaneous
revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.
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Customer Deposits

8

Customers may be required to make deposits with the Company prior to the performance of transmission
services, market transactions and engineering studies. An offsetting liability equal to the deposit balance is
recorded in current liabilities. Funds set aside for disputed invoices are also recorded as customer deposits
under current liabilities.

01

Tariff Fees and Member Assessments

/2

An administrative charge is applied to all transmission service under the Company’s Open Access
Transmission Tariff (tariff) to cover the expenses related to its administration. The charge is calculated in
accordance with the terms of the Company’s tariff. The administrative rate used for the calculation is
established by the board of directors.
Members are assessed monthly based on their prior year average 12-month peak demand multiplied by the
total hours in a month and by the monthly assessment rate as established by the board of directors.

30

A member’s monthly assessment is offset dollar for dollar for qualifying tariff administrative fees collected
from a member in any given assessment period.

3/

The Company collects a membership fee from each member annually. The amount of the membership fee is
established by the board of directors of the Company. For 2017 and 2016, all members paid a $6
membership fee.

R
AF
T

The Company also bills transmission customers and transmission owners a charge under Schedule 12 on all
energy delivered under point-to-point transmission service and network integration transmission service.
This provides a mechanism for recovering from transmission customers the annual charges the Company
pays to FERC.

Deferred Revenue

Revenues for contract services received in advance are recognized over the periods to which the revenues
relate.

Other Member Services

D

The Company provides reliability, tariff administration and scheduling for non-members on a contract basis.
The Company also provides engineering study services for long-term transmission service and generation
interconnection requests.

Withdrawing Members
Members wishing to withdraw their membership from the Company must provide 24 months’ written notice
and are responsible for their portion of the Company’s existing obligations as defined in the bylaws, which
include unpaid membership fees, any assessments imposed prior to the effective withdrawal date, any costs
or expenses imposed upon the Company as a direct consequence of the member’s withdrawal and the
member’s share of long-term obligations and related interest. Withdrawing members may also be
responsible for all financial obligations incurred and costs allocated to its load for transmission facilities
approved prior to their withdrawal. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had not been notified by any
member of their intent to withdraw their membership from the Company.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

01

8

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily through accounts receivable and uninsured cash balances.
During 2017 and 2016, the Company maintained cash balances, including transaction accounts and shortterm investment accounts that are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have transaction accounts exceeding federal insurance
limits. The Company’s investment accounts were primarily invested in highly liquid short-term investments
such as money market funds, mutual funds and repurchase agreements. The Company also requires the
financial institutions holding its cash balances to be rated A or better by nationally recognized rating
agencies.

/2

The Company considers its accounts receivable to be highly probable of collection. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was recorded at December 31, 2017. The Company had recorded an allowance of $822 at
December 31, 2016.

Note 2:

3/

30

The Company requires its customers to meet certain minimum standards of financial condition and
creditworthiness to receive unsecured credit from the Company. If these standards cannot be met by a
customer, the Company requires the posting of defined financial security instruments to cover potential
liabilities.

Investment and Investment Returns

R
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Investments at December 31 consisted of the following:

Mutual Funds
Equity
Fixed income
Total mutual funds

$

D

U.S. Government Securities
Treasury Notes
Total Government Securities

$

2017
9,359
3,430
12,789

2016
$

11,667
11,667
24,456

7,789
3,046
10,835

$

10,835
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Total investment return is comprised of the following:
2017
Interest and dividends reported at fair value

$

2016
234

$

investments reported at fair value

1,733

659

01

1,499
$

191

8

Net realized and unrealized gains on

$

850

Note 3:

Line of Credit

30

/2

Interest, dividends and realized gains and losses are reported as investment income, while unrealized gains
and losses are reported separately in the Statements of Income.

D

R
AF
T

3/

The Company has a $30,000 revolving line of credit expiring in 2019. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, no
amounts were borrowed against this line. The agreement has a variable interest rate equal to the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a credit margin. The interest rate at December 31, 2017, was 2.82%.
The Company’s line of credit requires compliance with certain financial and non-financial covenants as well
as periodic reporting requirements. The Company was in compliance with the covenant and reporting
requirements throughout and at December 31, 2017.

11

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Note 4:

Long-term Debt and Interest Rate Swaps

Long-term Debt

01

$

803
21,469

213,676

3,136
60,722
50,750
36,250
38,750
37,000
30,750
257,358
898
21,410

$

235,050

3/

$

Due February 1, 2027; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on a 25-year amortization.
Payments commenced on May 1, 2007. The interest rate adjusts quarterly based on LIBOR plus
0.85%. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the interest rate was 2.25% and 1.75%, respectively. The
note is secured by a first mortgage on the Company’s operation facility.

R
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(A)

2,930
59,518
43,750
31,250
33,750
37,000
27,750
235,948

/2

Less unamortized debt issuance costs
Less current maturities

$

30

Variable Rate Term Note due 2027 (A)
4.82% Series 2010-A and B Senior Notes due 2042 (B)
3.55% Series 2010-C Senior Notes due 2024 (C)
3.00% Series 2012-D-1 Senior Notes due 2024 (D)
3.25% Series 2012-D-2 Senior Notes due 2024 (E)
3.80% Series 2014-E Senior Notes due 2025 (F)
Floating Series Note - 2024 (G)

2016

8

2017

Due December 30, 2042; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on a 32-year amortization.
Principal payments commenced on March 30, 2013. The interest rate is fixed at 4.82%. The notes
are unsecured.

(C)

Due March 30, 2024; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on a 13-year amortization.
Principal payments commenced on June 30, 2014. The interest rate is fixed at 3.55%. The notes are
unsecured.

(D)

Due March 30, 2024; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on a 10-year amortization.
Principal payments commenced on June 30, 2014. The interest rate is fixed at 3.00%. The notes are
unsecured.

D

(B)

(E)

Due September 30, 2024; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on a 10-year amortization.
Principal payments commenced on December 30, 2014. The interest rate is fixed at 3.25%. The
notes are unsecured.

(F)

Due December 30, 2025; principal and interest are payable quarterly based on an 11 year and 9
months amortization. Principal payments commence on March 30, 2024. The interest rate is fixed at
3.80%. The notes are unsecured.

(G)

Due March 30, 2024; principal and interest are payable monthly based on an eight-year amortization.
Payments commenced on June 30, 2016. The interest rate adjusts monthly based on LIBOR plus
1.75%. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the interest rate was 3.11% and 2.37%, respectively. The
note is unsecured.
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December 31, 2017 and 2016
Aggregate annual maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2017, are:
$

21,469
22,281

2020

22,596

2021

23,414

2022

23,735

Thereafter

01

2019

8

2018

122,453
235,948

/2

$

Variable-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap

30

Certain of the Company’s term notes require compliance with financial and nonfinancial covenants, as well
as periodic reporting requirements. The Company was in compliance with the covenant and reporting
requirements throughout and at December 31, 2017.

3/

As a strategy to maintain acceptable levels of exposure to the risk of changes in future cash flows due to
interest rate fluctuations, the Company enters into interest rate swap agreements.

R
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On September 15, 2006, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with U.S. Bank National
Association. The agreement provides for the Company to receive interest from the counterparty at LIBOR
and to pay interest to the counterparty at a fixed rate of 5.51% on notional amounts of $2,907 and $3,111 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Under the agreement, the Company pays or receives the net
interest amount quarterly, with the quarterly settlements included in interest expense. The swap was
established to hedge interest rate risk on its floating rate debt obligation (Loan A).

The Company entered into another interest rate swap agreement on March 10, 2014, with Regions Bank. The
agreement provides for the Company to receive interest from the counterparty at LIBOR and to pay interest to
the counterparty at a fixed rate of 3.225% on notional amounts of $27,750 and $30,750 at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Under the agreement, the Company pays or receives the net interest amount monthly,
with the monthly settlements included in interest expense. The swap was established to hedge interest rate
risk on its floating rate debt obligation (Loan G).

D

The table below presents certain information regarding the Company’s interest rate swap agreements.
2017

2016

Fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Balance sheet location of fair value amounts

$

1,717
Other Long-term
Liabilities

$

2,506
Other Long-term
Liabilities

Gain recognized in statement of income
Location of gain recognized in statement of income

$

789

$

682

Change in Fair
Market Value of
Interest Rate Swaps

Change in Fair
Market Value of
Interest Rate Swaps
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Note 5:

Capital Lease Obligation

2018

$

2019

01

8

The Company entered into a capital lease obligation on February 1, 2015, in the amount of $6,901 to finance
data storage equipment. The term of the financing is five years and expires on November 1, 2019. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, accumulated depreciation for equipment purchased under the capital lease was
$4,740 and $3,115, respectively. Future minimum payments on the capital lease obligation at
December 31, 2017, are:
2,015

2,015

4,030

/2

Total minimum lease payments

174

30

Less: Amount representing interest
Present value of minimum lease payments

$

Current portion of minimum lease payments

$

$

1,890

1,966

3,856

R
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Total

3/

Long-term portion of minimum lease payments

3,856

Note 6:

Employee Benefit Plans

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

D

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all employees meeting eligibility
requirements. The Company’s funding policy is to make the minimum annual contribution that is required
by applicable regulations, plus such amounts as the Company may determine to be appropriate from time to
time. The Company expects to contribute approximately $4,590 to the plan in 2018.
The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit postretirement health care plan covering eligible
retirees, including those retiring between the ages of 55–65 and hired prior to January 1, 1996. Employees
hired after June 1, 2006, are not eligible to participate in the noncontributory defined postretirement health
care plan. Eligible retirees are provided monies through a tax-free health reimbursement account to pay for
individual Medicare supplemental health insurance plans or other eligible health care expenses.
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The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for the plans. Information about the plans’ funded
status is as follows:
Postretirement

Benefit obligation

$

85,888

Fair value of plan assets
Funded status

2016
$

76,969

70,183
$

2017
$

57,739

(15,705)

$

(19,230)

2016

9,474
-

$

9,426
-

(9,474)

$

(9,426)

/2

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets:

$

01

2017

Health Care Benefits

8

Pension Benefits

Postretirement

Pension Benefits

Other long-term liabilities

2016

2017

30

2017

Health Care Benefits

$

(15,705)

$

(19,230)

$

(9,474)

2016

$

(9,426)

3/

Amounts recognized in members’ equity not yet recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, consist of:
Postretirement

Pension Benefits

2016

R
AF
T

2017

Net loss

$

13,324

Prior service credit

Transition obligation

$

Health Care Benefits

$

18,681

2017
$

2016
4,501

$

5,538

(24)

(23)

(1,322)

(1,405)

49

66

13

18

13,349

$

18,724

$

3,192

$

4,151

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $68,960 and $61,476 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

D

Other significant balances and costs are:

Employer contributions

Postretirement
Pension Benefits

2017
$

Health Care Benefits

2016

Benefits paid

5,200
786

Benefit costs

7,049

$

2017
5,380
713
7,182

$

2016
101
1,108

$

91
1,210

In 2017, no amounts were funded by the Company into the investment account holding assets intended to be
utilized in providing benefits for eligible retirees. The Company transferred $250 into the investment
account in 2016.
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The following amounts have been recognized in the Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Postretirement
Pension Benefits

Health Care Benefits

2016

2017

Amounts arising during the period
4,759

Net prior service credit

2,092

$

819

$

783

785

985

255

315

1

1

(83)

(83)

16

4

4

16

30

Net transition obligation

$

01

$

/2

Net gain
Amounts recognized as benefit
components of net periodic
cost of the period
Net loss

2016

8

2017

3/

The estimated net loss, prior service cost and transition obligation for the defined benefit pension plan that
will be amortized from members’ equity into net period benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $338, $1
and $16, respectively. The estimated net loss, prior service cost and net obligation for the defined benefit
postretirement health care plan that will be amortized from members’ equity into net periodic benefit cost
over the next fiscal year are $197, $83 and $4, respectively.
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and costs:

R
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Pension Benefits

Postretirement
Health Care Benefits

2017

2016

2017

2016

Discount rate benefit obligation

5.0%

5.0%

5.0%

5.0%

Expected return on plan assets

7.0%

7.0%

N/A

N/A

Rate of compensation increase

4.0%

4.0%

N/A

N/A

D

The Company has estimated the long term rate of return on plan assets based primarily on historical returns
on plan assets, adjusted for changes in target portfolio allocations and recent changes in long-term interest
rates based on publicly available information.
For measurement purposes, a 9% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits
in the next year was assumed for 2017 and 2016. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5% by the
year 2022 and remain at that level thereafter.

16

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid as of December 31:

1,016
1,199
1,292
1,491
1,796
15,556

8

$

$

149
187
202
221
246
1,933

/2

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023-2027

01

Pension
Benefits

Postretirement
Health Care
Benefits

3/

30

The Company’s investment strategy is based on an expectation that equity securities will outperform fixed
income securities over the long term. Accordingly, the composition of the Company’s plan assets is broadly
characterized as a 70/30 allocation between equity and fixed income securities. The strategy utilizes indexed
and actively managed mutual fund instruments as well as direct investment in individual equity and fixed
income securities. Investments in the plan must adhere to the Investment Policy Statement developed by the
Company. The Investment Policy Statement limits investments in foreign securities to 20% of the total fair
value of plan assets. The Investment Policy Statement is reviewed annually.

R
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At December 31, 2017 and 2016, plan assets by category are as follows:
Pension Plan Assets
2017

2016

32%

27%

Equity securities

63

67

Cash and equivalents

5

6

100%

100%

Fixed income securities

D

Pension Plan Assets

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for the pension plan assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as well as the general
classification of the assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, plan assets are classified within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. Level 1 plan assets include cash, money market accounts, closed-end mutual funds and
common and foreign company stock. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated
by using pricing models, quoted prices of plan assets with similar characteristics or discounted cash flows.
Level 2 plan assets include open-end mutual funds, corporate debt obligations, foreign corporate debt
obligations and foreign government securities.
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In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, plan assets are classified within Level 3 of
the hierarchy. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not hold any plan assets valued using
Level 3 inputs.

8

The fair values of the Company’s pension plan assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016, by asset category are
as follows:

Fair Value
$

$

24,386
7,741
320
32,447

$

-

2,736
1,502
895
701
601
6,435

-

-

7,615

-

7,615

-

201

-

201

-

30
2,736
1,502
895
701
601
6,435

$

-

13,235
4,781
1,870
19,886

70,182

R
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Total

3,598

3/

Foreign government securities

$

37,621
12,522
2,190
52,333

Domestic common stock
Financials
Healthcare
Industrials
Telecommunications
Other
Corporate debt obligations

3,598

/2

Money market mutual funds
Mutual funds
Equity funds
Fixed income funds
Other funds

01

2017

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Significant Other
Significant
Identical Assets
Observable Inputs
Unobservable Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$

42,480

$

27,702

$

-

$

3,518

$

-

$

-

2016

Money market mutual funds

$

Mutual funds
Equity funds
Fixed income funds
Other Funds

D

Domestic common stock
Energy
Financials
Healthcare
Other

Foreign stocks

Corporate debt obligations
Foreign government securities
Total

$

3,518

28,500
8,795
1,363
38,658

19,766
5,785
255
25,805

8,734
3,010
1,109
12,853

-

3,456
1,536
1,961
1,858
8,811

3,456
1,536
1,961
1,858
8,811

-

-

303

303

-

-

5,945

-

5,945

-

505

-

505

-

57,739

$

38,436

$

19,302

$

-
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Defined Contribution Plans

8

The Company has a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees. The Company
matches contributions at 4.75% for those employees deferring 6% of compensation, with the match
fluctuating from 1% to 4.75% for each percentage of compensation contributed under 6%. Contributions to
the plan were $2,752 and $2,600 for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Related Party Transactions

3/

Note 7:

30

/2

01

The Company has a 457(b) non-qualified tax-deferred compensation plan. This plan is an unfunded plan
maintained for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees and, therefore, is intended to be exempt from the participation, vesting, funding and
fiduciary requirements of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
Accumulated contributions and earnings of $2,597 and $1,924 are recorded in other long-term liabilities at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company also offers a 457(f) non-qualified tax-deferred
compensation plan to a select group of executive management. The 457(f) plan was intended to be exempt
from the participation, vesting, funding and fiduciary requirements of Title I of ERISA and serves to further
supplement benefits lost due to IRS limits on compensation and benefits. There were accrued benefits of
$938 and $460 recorded in other long-term liabilities for the 457(f) plan participants at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
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General disbursements of the Company are apportioned to members based on the formula described in the
bylaws of the Company (see Note 1). The Company’s receivables from members totaled $21,137 and
$19,661 as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Company recognized revenues of $137,780
and $124,652, including assessments and tariff administrative fees, from members for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

D

The Southwest Power Pool Regional State Committee (RSC) was incorporated on April 7, 2004, in the state
of Arkansas. The RSC is comprised of commissioners from public service commissions or equivalent,
having regulatory authority over Company members. FERC, in its February 20, 2004 order regarding the
Company’s RTO application, stated, “the RSC should have primary responsibility for determining regional
proposals and the transition process for funding of regional transmission enhancements, rate structure for a
regional access charge and allocation of transmission rights.” The RSC prepares budgets annually for the
expected costs of its operations. This budget is submitted to the Company’s board of directors for approval.
The Company includes in its annual budget funds sufficient to cover 100% of the operating costs of the RSC.
During 2017 and 2016, the Company incurred $202 and $257, respectively, in expenses attributable to the
RSC operations. Management of the Company expects such expenditures for 2018 to be approximately
$381.

Note 8:

Open Access Transmission and Market Operations

The Company provides short- and long-term firm and non-firm point-to-point transmission services and
network integration transmission service across 43 providers in 14 states. The Company is responsible for
the billing of the transmission customers for the respective services and the remittance of the subsequent
collections to the transmission owners on a monthly basis. Billings for these transmission services are not
included in the statements of income. The Company receives a fee for facilitating the transmission process,
which is recorded as tariff fees in the Company’s Statements of Income.
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8

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company billed transmission customers $2,130,538
and $2,009,809, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company remitted to
transmission owners $1,914,880 and $1,850,198, respectively. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company was due to collect from customers and remit to owners transmission service charges of $178,581
and $161,852, respectively.

Note 9:

30

/2

01

The Company’s Integrated Marketplace includes a day-ahead market with transmission congestion rights, a
reliability unit commitment process, a real-time balancing market, an operating reserve market and a
consolidated balancing authority. Weekly settlements of market participants’ energy transactions are not
reflected in the Company’s Statements of Income since they do not represent revenues or expenses of the
Company, as the Company merely acts as an intermediary in the settlement process. In this role, the Company
receives and disburses funds to/from market participants on a weekly basis. At December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Company held $56,757 and $19,694, respectively, in cash collections from the settlement of auction
revenue rights in accordance with terms of the Company’s tariff. These funds are disbursed annually in June
for collections from the previous twelve months. A corresponding liability is reflected in accrued expenses on
the Balance Sheets.

Commitments and Contingencies

3/

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The Company is engaged in various legal and regulatory proceedings at both the federal and state levels. The
Company is also subject to claims and lawsuits that arise primarily in the ordinary course of business.

R
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It is the opinion of management that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such proceedings, claims and
lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations and cash flows
of the Company.

Note 10:

Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

D

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Topic 820 also specifies a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard
describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:
Level 1

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2

Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or
liabilities

Level 3

Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Fair Value
December 31, 2017
Cash equivalents

$

15,112

$

Equity

9,359

Fixed income

3,430

U.S. Government Securities
Treasury Notes

11,667

$

$

-

-

9,359

-

-

3,430

-

-

-

11,667

(1,717)

-

-

(1,717)

-

30

Interest rate swap agreements

15,112

/2

Mutual funds

01

8

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

3/
Fair Value

December 31, 2016

$

R
AF
T

Cash equivalents

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Observable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

29,799

$

29,799

$

-

$

-

Mutual funds
Equity

7,789

-

7,789

-

Fixed income

3,046

-

3,046

-

(2,506)

-

(2,506)

-

Interest rate swap agreements

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying Balance Sheets, as well as the general
classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. There have been no
significant changes in the valuation techniques during the year ended December 31, 2017.

D

Investments

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the
inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to,
yield curves, interest rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows.
Such securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2
inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. At December 31, 2017 and
2016, the Company does not hold any assets valued using Level 3 inputs.
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Interest Rate Swap Agreements

8

The fair value is estimated using forward-looking interest rate curves and discounted cash flows that are
observable or that can be corroborated by observable market data and, therefore, are classified within Level 2
of the valuation hierarchy.

01

Cash Equivalents

The fair value of money market mutual funds included in cash equivalents is estimated using quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities and, therefore, is classified within Level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy.

/2

The Company has no assets or liabilities measured and recognized in the accompanying Balance Sheets on a
nonrecurring basis.

30

The following methods were used to estimate the fair value of all other financial instruments recognized in
the accompanying Balance Sheets at amounts other than fair value.

Restricted Cash Deposits

Customer Deposits

3/

For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.
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Long-term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations
Fair value is estimated based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for bank loans with
similar terms and maturities.
The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
2017

2016
Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Financial assets

$

100,496

$

100,496

$

75,715

$

75,715

Restricted cash deposits

$

340,612

$

340,612

$

223,964

$

223,964

Investments

$

24,456

$

24,456

$

10,835

$

10,835

Customer deposits

$

340,612

$

340,612

$

223,964

$

223,964

D

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Capital lease obligations

$

3,856

$

3,902

$

5,673

$

5,791

Long-term debt

$

235,948

$

238,802

$

257,358

$

256,665

Swap agreements

$

1,717

$

1,717

$

2,506

$

2,506
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (in Thousands)
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Note 11:

Subsequent Events

D
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3/
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Subsequent events have been evaluated through the April XX, 2018, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Little Rock, Arkansas
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As part of our audit of the financial statements of Southwest Power Pool, Inc. (the Company) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2017, we wish to communicate the following to you.
AUDIT SCOPE AND RESULTS

/2

Auditor’s Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of
America

3/

29

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about the financial statements.
In performing auditing procedures, we establish scopes of audit tests in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole. Our engagement does not include a detailed audit of every transaction. Our
engagement letter more specifically describes our responsibilities.
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These standards require communication of significant matters related to the financial statement audit that
are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial reporting
process. Such matters are communicated in the remainder of this letter or have previously been
communicated during other phases of the audit. The standards do not require the auditor to design
procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be communicated with those charged with
governance.
An audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities. Our engagement letter more specifically describes your responsibilities.
Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

D

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the audited financial
statements.
Alternative Accounting Treatments

No matters are reportable.

Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Page 2

Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates

•

Recoverability of property and equipment (depreciation)

•

Fair value of long-term debt

•

Interest rate swaps

01

Pension and postretirement health benefits liabilities

/2

•

8

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on its
judgments. The following areas involve significant estimates for which we are prepared to discuss
management’s estimation process and our procedures for testing the reasonableness of those estimates:

Financial Statement Disclosure

29

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are
prepared to discuss the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures:
Pension and other postretirement benefit plans

•

Fair value

•

Commitments and contingencies
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Audit Adjustments

3/

•

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts.
Management evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments that, in its judgment, are required to
prevent the financial statements from being materially misstated.
•

No matters are reportable.

Auditor’s Judgments About the Quality of the Entity’s Accounting Principles

D

No matters are reportable.

Significant Issues Discussed with Management
Prior to Retention
•

No matters are reportable.

Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Page 3

During the Audit Process
•

No matters are reportable.

8

Other Material Communications

•

01

Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit:
Management representation letter (attached)

/2

OTHER MATTERS

3/

29

We observed the following matters and offer these comments and suggestions with respect to matters that
came to our attention during the course of the audit of the financial statements. Our audit procedures are
designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and, therefore, may not
bring to light all weaknesses in policies and procedures that may exist. However, these matters are
offered as constructive suggestions for the consideration of management as part of the ongoing process of
modifying and improving financial and administrative practices and procedures. We can discuss these
matters further at your convenience and may provide implementation assistance for changes or
improvements.
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FASB Issues New Lease Accounting Standard

On February 25, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), the long-awaited new standard on lease accounting.
Under the new ASU, lessees will recognize lease assets and liabilities on their balance sheet for all leases
with terms of more than 12 months. The new lessee accounting model retains two types of leases and is
consistent with the lessee accounting model under existing GAAP. One type of lease (finance leases) will
be accounted for in substantially the same manner as capital leases are accounted for today.

D

The other type of lease (operating leases) will be accounted for (both in the income statement and
statement of cash flows) in a manner consistent with today’s operating leases. Lessor accounting under
the new standard is fundamentally consistent with existing GAAP.
Lessees and lessors would be required to provide additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures to
help financial statement users assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases. These disclosures are intended to supplement the amounts recorded in the financial statements so
that users can understand more about the nature of an organization’s leasing activities.
For public business entities, the final leases standard will be effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other entities, the final
leases standard will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods
thereafter. Early application is permitted.

Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Page 4

FASB Issues New Revenue Recognition Standard
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The model for revenue recognition is changing with FASB’s release on May 28, 2014, of ASU 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (the ASU). Since 2008, FASB and the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) have been working jointly on developing a single principles-based model for
recognizing revenue. The goal of the final standard is to improve consistency of requirements,
comparability of revenue recognition practices and usefulness of disclosures. The ASU applies to all
contracts with customers, other than those within the scope of other standards, such as leases, insurance,
financing arrangements, financial instruments and guarantees (other than product or service warranties).
The ASU does not apply to other parties to a contract who are not customers.

29

The five-step application is as follows:

/2

The core principle of the new model is that an entity would recognize revenue as it transfers goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration it expects to receive. In order to
achieve that core principle, an entity would apply a five-step model.

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer

3/

Step 2: Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations in the contract
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Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied
The table below outlines the significant changes to expect from the new revenue recognition standard.
Under the Current Guidance

Under the New Guidance
There will be consistent principles, regardless of
industry, for recognizing revenue.

Most companies provide little disclosure
information about revenue contracts; disclosures
usually relate to accounting policies and segment
reporting.

There is now a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements. These disclosures will provide
users of the financial statements with quantitative
and qualitative information regarding revenue
recognition policies and how they are applied.

Some goods or services promised to a customer
in a contract might represent separate obligations
to the customer but could be determined to not be
distinct revenue generating transactions.

Organizations will need to go through the fivestep process outlined above.

D

There are several requirements for recognizing
revenue, including many that are industry
specific.

Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
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Under the Current Guidance

Under the New Guidance
Organizations will determine the transaction
price. The transaction price will then be
allocated to each performance obligation, except
when a discount or some sort of variable
consideration can be attributed entirely to one or
more performance obligations in the contract.

Accounting for variable consideration varies
from industry to industry.

Variable consideration will be included in the
transaction price as long as it is deemed probable
that a significant reversal of revenue will not
occur. The new model includes consideration for
various types of variable consideration, such as
rebates, discounts bonuses or a right of return.

29
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In a multiple deliverable arrangement, the
amount of consideration allocated to a delivered
item is limited to the amount that is not
contingent on the future delivery of goods or
services.

3/

Entities can apply the new standard using either the full retrospective method—including the optional
application of certain practical expedients—or use an alternative transition method. The alternative
transition method requires an entity to apply the new guidance only to contracts in process under legacy
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) at the date of initial application and recognize the
cumulative effect of adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the year of
initial application.
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An entity choosing to apply the alternative transition method would not restate comparative years, but it
would be required to provide additional disclosures in the initial year of adoption.
The standard will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2018, and
interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. Early application is permitted only as of annual reporting
periods beginning after December 31, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that period.
FASB Releases New Statement of Cash Flows Standard

D

On November 17, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted
Cash. This standard is intended to reduce diversity in the presentation of restricted cash and restricted
cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows. The standard requires restricted cash and restricted cash
equivalents be included as total cash and cash equivalents as presented on the statement of cash flows
when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of
cash flows.
This pronouncement will be in effect for the period beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted, including adoption in an interim period.

Finance Committee and Board of Directors
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the finance committee
and the board of directors and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

D

R
AF
T

3/
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______________ __, ____
(Date of Auditor’s Report)

April 9, 2018

BKD,

LLP
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Certified Public Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
P.O Box 3667
Little Rock, AR 72203-3667
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We are providing this letter in connection with your audits of Southwest Power Pool, Inc.’s (the
Company) financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. We
confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We are also
responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, operations and compliance, and preventing and
detecting fraud.
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Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following:
We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our engagement
letter dated August 17, 2017, for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

2.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

D

1.

3.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

4.

We have provided you with:
(a)

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation and other matters.

-2-

Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
the audit.

(c)

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined
it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

(d)

All minutes of members’, directors’ and finance committee meetings held
through the date of this letter.

(e)

All significant contracts and grants.
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(b)

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in
the financial statements.

6.

We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not
adequately prevented or detected by Company procedures with respect to:
Misappropriation of assets.

(b)

Misrepresented or misstated assets, liabilities or net assets.

29

(a)

3/

We have no knowledge of any known or suspected:
(a)

Fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets involving
management or employees who have significant roles in internal control.

(b)

Fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets involving
others that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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7.
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5.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting
the Company received in communications from employees, customers, regulators,
suppliers or others.

9.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. Related party
relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We understand that the term related party refers to an
affiliate; management, and members of their immediate families, subsidiaries
accounted for by the equity method; and any other party with which the Company
may deal if the Company can significantly influence, or be influenced by, the
management or operating policies of the other. The term affiliate refers to a party
that directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Company.

D

8.

-3Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no:
Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrying values or
classifications of assets and liabilities.

(b)

Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded in the financial
records.

(c)

Material gain/loss contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including
those arising from environmental remediation obligations.

(d)

Events occurring subsequent to the statement of financial position date
through the date of this letter requiring adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements.

(e)

Agreements to purchase assets previously sold.

(f)

Restrictions on cash balances or compensating balance agreements.

(g)

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Company is
contingently liable.

/2
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(a)

29

10.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of noncompliance or suspected
noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

12.

We have no reason to believe the Company owes any penalties or payments under
the Employer Shared Responsibility Provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act nor have we received any correspondence from the IRS or
other agencies indicating such payments may be due.
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3/

11.

D

13.

14.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. The effects
of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Company is engaged in various legal and
regulatory proceedings at both the federal and state level. The resolution of these
matters is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
financial position, cash flows, or results of operations.
Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses
from:
(a)

Uncollectible receivables.

(b)

Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or above
prevailing market prices.

-4-

15.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the Company has:
(a)

Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and they are not subject to any liens,
pledges or other encumbrances.

(b)

Complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements, for which
noncompliance would materially affect the financial statements.

The financial statements disclose all significant estimates and material
concentrations known to us. Significant estimates are estimates at the statement
of financial position date which could change materially within the next year.
Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of
supply, or markets for which events could occur which would significantly disrupt
normal finances within the next year. Significant assumptions used by us in
making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are
reasonable.

17.

The fair values of financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities, if any,
recognized in the financial statements or disclosed in the notes thereto are
reasonable estimates based on the methods and assumptions used. The methods
and significant assumptions used result in measurements of fair value appropriate
for financial statement recognition and disclosure purposes and have been applied
consistently from period to period, taking into account any changes in
circumstances.
The significant assumptions appropriately reflect market
participant assumptions.

18.

We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent
status) by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant
regulatory agency with authority to enforce environmental laws and regulations.

19.

We are an organization exempt from income tax under Section 501(c) of the
Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law and, except as
disclosed in the financial statements, there are no activities that would jeopardize
our tax-exempt status or subject us to income tax on unrelated business income or
excise tax on prohibited transactions and events.
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16.

20.

Costs capitalized in association with software development, including capitalized
interest, are fully recoverable over the anticipated life of the asset.

21.

We were in compliance with all debt covenants relating to outstanding debt
issued, and/or lines of credit in place, throughout and as of December 31, 2017.

22.

The $9,719,995 in performance compensation accrued at December 31, 2017, is
the amount that was approved by the Board of Directors in executive session on
January 30, 2018.

-5-

We have evaluated whether there are conditions or events known or reasonably
knowable, considered in the aggregate that could raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year of the date of
this letter without consideration of potential mitigating effects of management’s
plans not yet fully implemented and concluded substantial doubt does not exist.
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23.

Tom Dunn, Chief Financial Officer

D
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Dianne Branch, Controller

29
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Nick Brown, Chief Executive Officer

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 24, 2018
Auditor Engagements
Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Mike Wise
Sandra Bennett

SPP Director
SPP Director
Westar
Lincoln Electric
Golden Spread
American Electric Power

Background
SPP annually engages Certified Public Accounting (CPA) firms to perform audits of its control activities, financial
statements and employee benefit plans (401(k) Savings Plan, Retirement Plan and Medical Plan). The current slate
of auditors and their tenure on the SPP audits are as follows:
Controls Audit
Financial Audit
Benefit Plan Audits

KPMG
BKD
Thomas & Thomas

4 years
14 years
13 years

The Committee, in 2016, established a guideline to formally put the audit work out for bid every 6 years, unless the
Committee determined, at its own discretion, to accelerate or delay the timing of a formal bid process. The last RFP
issued for SPP’s audit work occurred in 2013, therefore, SPP would expect to perform a formal bid process for the
audit work in 2019.

Analysis
Audit Fee Analysis for Financial and Benefit Plans
SPP has seen modest increases in the combined audit fees for BKD and Thomas & Thomas over the last six years,
averaging 3.0% year over year from 2011-2016. Projected audit fees for 2017 and 2018 reflect an average 4%
increase over the previous year. The combined fee history over the last seven years and the projected fees for 20172018 for both BKD and Thomas & Thomas are as follows:

Audit Staffing Continuity for Financial and Benefit Plans
Both firms have historically provided consistency in their staffing of the audits which provides greater efficiency in the
execution of fieldwork. SPP has benefited over the years from having continuty of staff, especially in the more senior
positions of the audit teams. As fieldwork concluded for the 2017 audit, the engagement director resigned from the
firm and was replaced by a partner who had previously served in a concurring role on the SPP financial audit. It had
been the decision of the Committee to require rotation of the finacial audit partner every five years and this would
have occurred naturally at the conclusion of the 2017 audit. While the resignation accelerated the rotation, we

believe the partner’s familiarity with SPP through his previous experience as concurring partner will lend itself to a
smooth transtion. With respect to the rotation of partners on the employee benefit plan engagements, we do not
believe this to be a meaningful action given the audits are performed only due to DOL/ERISA requirements and are
not opined on by the auditors due to the limited scope nature of the audits for the 401(k) and retirement plans. There
will be no future audits of the medical plan beyond 2017 due to the disollution of the related trust agreement in May
2017, therefore eliminating the audit requirement.

Recommendation
The Finance Committee recommends the engagement of BKD to perform an audit of SPP’s 2018 financial
statements and Thomas & Thomas to perform an audit of SPP’s 2018 employee benefit plan financial statements.

Approved:

SPP Finance Committee

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 24, 2018
2018 Funding for Pension and Post-retirement Healthcare Plans

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Kelly Harrison
Sandra Bennett
Laura Kapustka
Mike Wise

SPP Director
SPP Director
Westar
American Electric Power
Lincoln Electric
Golden Spread

Background
The SPP Finance Committee is charged with reviewing reports from the plan’s actuary, establishing funding policies,
and recommending annual funding levels for the plans to the SPP Board of Directors. SPP engaged Osborn,
Carreiro & Associates (“the Actuary”) to prepare actuarial valuation reports of the SPP Defined Benefit Retirement
Plan and SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan as of January 1, 2018.

Analysis
SPP Defined Benefit Retirement Plan
The report identifies 2018 accounting expense for this plan as well as minimum and maximum contributions for the
plan. The Actuary determined 2018’s minimum contribution level to be $0.00 and suggested level to be $4.59.
SPP’s 2018 budget anticipated contributions to the defined benefit pension plan of $5.90.
The schedule below illustrates the historical funding of the SPP Defined Benefit Retirement Plan:
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Maximum Contribution (tax deductible)

$32.11

$37.20

$50.29

$61.01

$69.18

Minimum Contribution
Actuary Suggested Contribution
Actual Contribution

$2.50
3.66
3.66

$3.31
3.76
3.76

$0.00
5.38
5.38

$0.00
5.20
5.20

$0.00
4.59

Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO)
Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO)
Fair Value of Plan Assets

$50.70
40.00
45.90

$68.09
53.75
47.74

$76.97
64.48
57.74

$85.89
68.96
70.18

Discount Rate

5.50%

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

Plan Assets vs. PBO
Plan Assets vs. ABO
Total Participants
Benefits Paid

-$4.80
5.90
698
$0.43

-$20.35
-6.01
732
$0.61

-$19.23
-3.74
764
$0.71

-$15.71
1.22
796
$0.79

SPP Defined Benefit Retirement Plan Fund Status as of December 31, 2016
The fund had total assets of $70.18 versus an Accumulated Benefit Obligation of $68.96, Projected Benefit Obligation
of $85.89 and termination value of approximately $75.00. The Actuary estimates participants active on January 1,
2018 will accrue $5.00 in benefits during fiscal year 2018. Finally, the value of the early retirement feature of the
Defined Benefit Retirement Plan is estimated to be $4.00.
SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan
In 1995, the Board of Directors approved retiree medical coverage for all SPP employees who retire at their Normal
Retirement Date as defined in the SPP Defined Benefit Retirement Plan. The Board also awarded benefits under this
plan to those employees of record on January 1, 1996 who retire between the ages of 55 - 65. The SPP Board acted
in 2006 to limit benefits from this plan to only those employees hired prior to June 1, 2006. As of January 1, 2018
SPP had 105 active employees covered by this plan and 22 retirees.
The Actuary estimated 2018 net periodic post-retirement benefit cost to be $1.02. This computation is based on a
5.00% discount rate and retirement at age 65. The health care cost trend was assumed to increase 9% next year,
8% the year after and so on down to 5% and remain there thereafter.
If the plan were a funded plan and the assets SPP has set aside to cover benefits were considered in the actuarial
calculations; the actuary would suggest SPP fund an additional $0.00 during 2018. SPP’s 2018 budget allocates
$0.00 in funding for post-retirement benefits. Assets SPP has set aside to cover benefits exceeded the accumulated
benefit obligation as of year-end 2017 by approximately $2.49 million.
2014

2015

2016

2017

Actual Contribution

$0.41

$0.00

$0.25

$0.00

Pension Cost

$1.44

$1.48

$1.21

$1.11

Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 1
Funded Status vs. ABO

$8.90
10.68
1.78

$9.29
9.35
0.06

$9.43
10.44
1.01

$9.47
11.96
2.49

Plan Participants – Active
Plan Participants – Retired

124
12

117
15

111
18

105
22

2018

$1.02

Recommendation
Approve 2018 funding of the SPP Retirement Plan of $4.59
Approve 2018 funding of the SPP Post-retirement Healthcare Plan of $0.00

Approved:

SPP Finance Committee

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

April 9, 2018

1
The Post-retirement Healthcare plan is an unfunded plan and therefore has no plan assets. The plan sponsor has set aside specific assets with the
intent to use those assets to pay benefits under the plan.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the SPP Board of Directors
April 24, 2018

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Sandra Bennett
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Bruce Scherr
Michael Wise

Director
American Electric Power
Westar Energy
Lincoln Electric System
Director
Golden Spread Electric Coop

Background
SPP’s term debt structure as of the end of December 2017 was as follows:
Balances ($MM)
Due Date

Rate

Original

Current

Funding
Year

Lender

Primary Purpose

2027 Sr. Notes

5.51% 1

$

5.1

$

2.9

2007

Bank

2042-A&B Sr. Notes

4.82%

$

65.0

$

59.5

2010

Insurance

Corporate Campus

2024-C Sr. Notes

3.55%

$

70.0

$

43.7

2011

Insurance

Integrated Marketplace

2024-D-1 Sr. Notes

3.00%

$

50.0

$

31.3

2012

Insurance

Integrated Marketplace

2024-D-2 Sr. Notes

3.25%

$

50.0

$

33.7

2012

Insurance

Integrated Marketplace

2025-E Sr. Notes

3.80%

$

37.0

$

37.0

2014

Insurance

Project Pinnacle

2024 Floating Note

3.23% 2

$

33.0

$

27.8

2014

Bank

Capex Program

Totals

$ 310.1

Maumelle Facility

$ 235.9

All notes are unsecured except for the 2027 term notes, which are secured by a mortgage on SPP’s Maumelle, AR
operations facility. SPP also has a $30 million unsecured revolving line of credit maturing in 2019. The revolving line
currently has $0 advanced. Pricing of draws against the line of credit are variable based on SPP’s credit rating.
Currently any draws under the revolving facility would be priced at LIBOR + 1.25%.

1

Swap agreement entered into on September 15, 2006 with US Bank. SPP receives interest from US Bank at LIBOR
and pays interest to US Bank at a fixed rate of 5.51%. SPP pays/receives the net interest amount quarterly. Original
rate was LIBOR + 0.85%. The swap was established to hedge interest rate risk on its floating rate debt obligation.
2 Swap agreement entered into on March 10, 2014 with Regions Bank. SPP receives interest from Regions Bank at
LIBOR and pays interest to Regions Bank at a fixed rate of 3.225%. SPP pays/receives the net interest amount
monthly. Original rate was LIBOR + 1.75%. The swap was established to hedge interest rate risk on its floating rate
debt obligation.

Analysis
SPP uses long-term debt to fund a majority of its capital expenditures. SPP’s capital expenditure program consists of
refresh/replacement of existing infrastructure as well as creation of new services and capabilities. Capital
expenditures, excluding potential expenditures related to Mountain West joining SPP, are expected to run between
$15MM-$20MM/year. Historically, SPP utilized issuance of stand-alone notes to fund capital needs for several years.
This process benefitted SPP by allowing better execution of the issuances, primarily in terms of interest rates. A
downside to this process was that SPP often held the proceeds from the financings in its cash accounts and suffered
slightly in terms of the returns earned on the cash versus the interest paid on the financing.
SPP issued a request for proposal in July 2017 seeking the following structure:
•
$100MM committed revolving guidance line
•
5-year maturity
•
Floating rate pricing on outstanding balances under the guidance line w/ a fixed credit spread during the
term of the facility
•
Unsecured
Term Option:
•
Outstanding balances under guidance line may be converted to five year term notes (term note maturities
may extend beyond the maturity of the guidance line)
•
Fixed rate based on a fixed credit spread over 5-year treasury notes
•
Unsecured
Staff estimates this borrowing structure will save approximately $7.9MM compared to traditional term note funding.
This structure will also prevent the need for ongoing FERC approval on multiple individual term notes.
The revolving line of credit will give SPP access to the funds on an as-needed basis while paying interest only on the
funded tranches, with a small fee assessed on unused line of credit funds. This allows SPP to have some amount of
headroom with a $100 million line of credit for unknown capital needs for minimal cost. Tranches may then be
converted to smaller term notes to facilitate recovery of the capital costs as the assets are used in SPP’s services.
SPP received three responses from local and middle market banks. None of the banks offered SPP exactly what
was requested in the request for proposal though one response was very close. The following table summarizes the
responses received.

Terms of Proposal

Bank A

Bank B

Bank C
Up to $100,000,000
(Uncommitted)

Commitment Amount

Up to $80,000,000

Up to $100,000,000

Master Note/Line of
Credit

Revolving Master Note; 5
Year Maturity

Non-Revolving Line of
Credit; 5 Year Maturity

Private Placement Bonds

Term Notes

Tranches Converted to
Term Notes; 4 Year
Maturity

Tranches Converted to
Term Notes; Balloon
Payments at End of 5
Year LC Maturity

8, 10, or 12 Year
Maturities

Master Note/Line of
Credit Interest Rate

30 Day LIBOR + 150bps;
Floor 2.75%; Paid
Quarterly

LIBOR + 125bps

None

Master Note/Line of
Credit Unused Fee

0.125%; Paid Annually
for 3 Years

0.150%

None

Term Note Interest
Rate

5-Year Treasury +
185bps; Floor 2.875%

Floating LIBOR with
Swap

Like-term Treasury +
100bps

Term Note Fee

$1,875 Conversion Fee

$3,500/Lender/Year

Optional Redemption –
Make Whole + 50bps

Origination Fee

$32,500

20bps ≥ $40mm
15 bps ≤ $20mm
Arrang. Fee $162,500

$600,000

Covenants

Same as existing

Same as existing

Negotiable

Collateral

Unsecured

Unsecured

Unsecured

The least expensive option that aligns with the terms specified in the RFP is Bank A’s proposal. This includes a
revolving master note with a 5 year maturity. Tranches taken on this master note can be converted to term notes with
a $1,875 fee per conversion, which have a 4 year maturity. The interest rate on the master note is a floating 30 Day
LIBOR + 150bps with a floor of 2.75% and quarterly interest payments. The fee is 0.125% on unused master note
funds. The 4-year term notes will have a fixed rate based on 5-year treasuries + 185bps and a floor of 2.875%.
With selection of Bank A’s proposal, the structure of SPP’s principal and interest obligations are contained in the
following chart. The new debt facility clearly demonstrates the “pay as you go” methodology as principal payments
are amortized over the similar period of capital asset useful life. A presumptive renewal of the structure has also
been included to demonstrate the ongoing capital expenditure funding requirements.

Recommendation
SPP Finance Committee recommends: 1) approval to issue securities not to exceed $80 million from Bank A as
described above, 2) approval for the President, Chief Financial Officer and other officers of SPP to seek regulatory
approval for the securities issuance, and 3) approval for the President and Chief Financial Officer of SPP to execute
and deliver any and all loan commitments, loan agreements, closing statement, and other documents associated with
the securities issuance.

Approved:

SPP Finance Committee

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors
April 24, 2018
Schedule 1A Administrative Fee

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Bruce Scherr
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Sandra Bennett
Mike Wise

Director
Director
Westar
Lincoln Electric
American Electric Power
Golden Spread Electric

Background
SPP recovers the vast majority of its operating and capital costs from transmission customers of the tariff
based on either prior year average peak demand for network transmission service or reserved capacity
for point to point transmission service. This recovery structure was implemented when SPP solely
provided transmission service under the tariff. SPP’s cost of operation increased with the addition of the
Energy Imbalance Services market (“EIS”) in 2007 and again in 2014 with the implementation of the
Integrated Marketplace (“IM”). The increases in services and corresponding increase in SPP’s operating
costs have resulted in several challenges for SPP and its membership which warranted review of SPP’s
cost recovery mechanism. Principal among these challenges is recovery of SPP costs in retail rates by
SPP’s load serving transmission customers. Other challenges include a disconnect between those who
use and benefit from SPP’s services and those who directly pay for SPP’s services; and ensuring all who
participate in SPP’s open and transparent stakeholder processes are incented to ensure the benefits of
new initiatives are weighted against the cost to provide those new initiatives.
Analysis
A rate structure utilizing energy settled in the IM was identified as an effective means to address some of
the challenges identified above. The Finance Committee has identified several guiding principles to serve
as a foundation for changing SPP’s rate structure.
1) Charge against all settled transactions in SPP’s markets: Assessing a charge against
transactions settled in the market is an efficient and effective means to recover all of SPP’s net
revenue requirement from those who are using SPP’s services. SPP’s costs are mostly fixed and
thus don’t vary based on changes in demand. SPP’s recovery, however, has long been tied to
peak demand which results in systems with high peaks but low load factors paying a larger share
of SPP’s costs. Recovering SPP’s costs from transactions settled in the market is more equitable
as the benefits of SPP’s services are generally realized in delivery of lower cost reliable energy.
This principle may also shift a portion of SPP’s operating cost recovery into the cost of energy
which is anticipated to ease recovery under a utility’s rate design.
2) Retain a single rate design: SPP has been unique in comparison to its peers in recovering all
of its net revenue requirement through a single rate charged to transmission customers. The
recognition was that the load would necessarily pay for the costs of SPP and this was maintained

as the primary method. Based on the increased functionality of the markets in SPP the one rate
still makes sense as all the services within the market are based, first on the reliability
responsibilities of SPP as well as that cost. Also the other services would not be available if the
markets were absent and thus the benefit for which ever MW is represented in the market would
be equal. The simplicity of this method also has appealed to SPP’s stakeholders and helped
maintain a lower cost of operation by not increasing the complexity of the recovery process.
Using a single rate charged against all MWhs of energy settlement in the market will result in both
load and generation being charge approximately the same for SPP’s services with non-asset
participants also funding a share of SPP’s expenses based on their level of relative participation
in the markets.
3) Annual rate setting process: An annual rate setting process provides clarity to all participants
in terms of what they may expect to pay for SPP’s services annually. The annual process would
occur in conjunction with SPP’s annual budgeting processes, as is done today. An additional
process for minor rate adjustments during the year to ensure SPP doesn’t significantly over or
under recover is acceptable.
The effective date of implementation is targeted as July 1, 2020. This date was chosen to avoid, as much
as possible, resource constraints associated with two other significant initiatives, the integration of the
Mountain West Transmission Group and the implementation of the new SPP settlement system. Finally,
the July 1 start date aligns with the annual term of the Financial Transmission Rights product.
High level milestones identified to date include:
SPP Board of Directors approval of these principles
SPP stakeholder group work
MOPC & Board approval of tariff language
System development/testing
FERC approval
Implement

April 2018 or July 2018
Aug 2018 – April 2019
July 2019
July 2019 – June 2020
May 2020
July 2020

SPP staff has conducted several one on one conversations with individual members to benefit from their
thoughts on this initiative. Generally, load serving entities are supportive of this approach, though not
without some concerns. Members who do not serve load were generally less supportive. These
conversations have highlighted numerous hurdles SPP will need to address in order to make this change.
These hurdles include, but are not limited to, the following:
a) Not all customers will include this cost in their rate schedules. Some may be limited by retail
regulators, some by existing contracts, some by choice; need to ensure this charge doesn’t
disrupt market efficiency
b) SPP governance model may not be optimal based on this change; need to ensure entities
paying the administrative fee have appropriate voice and voting power in SPP affairs;
c) Single rate design is an anomaly in the ISO/RTO world and may introduce pressure from
FERC to adopt unbundled rate design common in other ISO/RTO markets;
Recommendation
Approve the guiding principles outlined in this recommendation and direct the SPP Markets and
Operations Policy Committee to take on the task of working through the details to implement this change
and deliver to the SPP Board of Directors changes to tariff schedule 1A to effectuate the change by July
2019.
Approved:

Finance Committee

[Date]

[Vote Count (for example: x For, y Against or Passed Unopposed]

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

Proposed Schedule 1A Changes
11/2017 ‐ 2/2018
Staff Develops
strawman

1/2018

8/2018 ‐ 4/2019
MOPC, RTWG & MWG
Develop Tariff Language

7/2018
Present to BOD
for Approval

4/2018

7/2018

11/17

2/2018 ‐ 7/2018
Finance, Strategic Planning,
Corporate Governance Committees
Review strawman

10/2018

1/2019

6/2019 ‐ 6/2020
Utilities Plan for Budgetary Changes,
System Changes and Member Testing

4/2019

7/2019

10/2019
7/2019
MOPC & BOD Final Approval

1/2020

6/2020
Go Live

4/2020
6/20

3/2020 ‐ 6/2020
FERC Approval

Member Process
11/2017 ‐ 2/2018
Staff Develops
Governance

1/2018

8/2018 ‐ 4/2019
MOPC, RTWG & MWG
Develop Tariff Language

7/2018
Present to BOD
for Approval

4/2018

7/2018

10/2018

1/2019

6/2019 ‐ 6/2020
Utilities Plan for Budgetary Changes,
System Changes and Member Testing

4/2019

7/2019

10/2019

1/2020

6/2020
Go Live

4/2020

11/17

6/20
8/2019
MOPC & BOD Final Approval

2/2018 ‐ 7/2018
Finance, Strategic Planning,
Corporate Governance Committees
Review strawman

3/2020 ‐ 6/2020
FERC Approval

12/2018
9/2018
2/2019
11/2018
December MWG
8/2018
September RTWG
February MWG
November MWG
3/2019
August RTWG
10/2018
1/2019
March RTWG –
Final Review
October MWG
January RTWG

11/2017 ‐ 2/2018
Staff Develops
Governance

4/2018

7/2018

10/2018

1/2019

2/2018

4/2019
4/2019

2/2018 ‐ 7/2018
Finance, Strategic Planning,
Corporate Governance Committees
Review strawman

7/2018
Present to BOD
for Approval

8/2018 ‐ 4/2019
MOPC, RTWG & MWG
Develop Tariff Language

System Changes
11/2017 ‐ 2/2018
Staff Develops
strawman

1/2018

8/2018 ‐ 4/2019
MOPC, RTWG & MWG
Develop Tariff Language

7/2018
Present to BOD for Approval

4/2018

7/2018

10/2018

1/2019

6/2020
Go Live

6/2019 ‐ 6/2020
Utilities Plan for Budgetary Changes,
System Changes and Member Testing

4/2019

7/2019

10/2019

1/2020

11/17

4/2020
6/20

7/2019
MOPC & BOD Final Approval

2/2018 ‐ 7/2018
Finance, Strategic Planning,
Corporate Governance Committees
Review strawman

3/2020 ‐ 6/2020
FERC Approval
6/2019 ‐ 6/2020
Utilities Plan for Budgetary Changes,
System Changes and Member Testing

6/2019 ‐ 8/2019
Requirements
7/2019
6/19

8/2019 ‐ 10/2019
System Design

10/2019 ‐ 12/2019
System
Development
10/2019

12/2019 ‐ 3/2020
SPP Testing
1/2020

6/2020
Go Live

3/2020 ‐ 5/2020
Member Testing

5/2020 ‐ 6/2020
Final System
Testing

4/2020
6/20

Finance Committee

2017 2016 2015
Number of members
Number of responses
Response rate
Overall effectiveness score
Lowest score
Highest score

7
5
71%
4.8
4.2
5

Question
The agenda reflects the actions to be taken during the meeting.
4.8
Meeting materials are provided in a timely manner.
4.6
The information provided prior to the meeting is utilized during the meeting.
4.2
The information presented in meetings is clear.
4.2
Meeting minutes are an accurate reflection of the meeting.
4.8
Additional comments:
Some of the presentations given at the meeting are not included in the information sent out before the meeting.

7
6
86%
4.7

2016
4.8
4.5
4.3
4.3
4.5

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

7
6
86%
4.0

7
4
57%
4.8

7
6
86%
4.8

7
6
86%
4.8

7
6
86%
4.5

7
6
86%
#REF!

2015

Average score
2014
2013
2012

2011

2010

4.8
4.3
4.7
4.2
4.5

5.0
4.2
4.8
4.4
4.6

4.8
4.8
4.8
4.5
5.0

4.8
4.0
4.5
4.7
4.7

Membership represents the diversity of the SPP organization.
4.6
4.3
4.3
Membership has the necessary expertise and/or skills to accomplish its goals.
4.8
4.8
4.7
Members come prepared to meetings.
4.4
4.3
4.0
Members are committed to participate and accomplish the group's goals.
4.6
4.5
4.6
4.7
Members are supportive and respectful of the individual needs and differences of group members.
5.0
4.8
Additional comments:
Very good quality in the make-up of the Committee membership; good quality engagement of the committee during meetings

4.4
4.8
4.2
4.6
4.6

4.0
4.8
4.7
4.7
4.7

Members are engaged during the meeting.
Decisions are identified and action is recommended.
Facilitation is sufficient to guide discussion.
Dissenting voices are heard.
I depart with a feeling that we have accomplished something.
Additional comments:
-

4.8
4.6
4.6
4.6
4.6

4.5
4.2
4.3
4.7
4.3

4.8
4.7
4.7
4.5
4.2

4.8
4.4
4.4
4.8
4.4

The chair seeks input, and organizational group members are able to influence key decisions and plans.
The chair is supportive and respectful of the individual needs and differences of group members.
The chair keeps the group on task to achieve appropriate outcomes.
The chair ensures follow-through on questions and commitments.
Additional comments:
-

4.6
4.6
4.8
4.8

4.5
4.8
4.2
5.0

4.7
4.7
4.2
4.3

4.8
4.8
3.8
4.6

4.7
4.2
4.3
n/a
4.7

4.5
4.2
4.0
n/a
4.2

4.2
4.3
4.3
4.8
4.5

4.3
4.3
4.0
4.5
4.7

4.2
4.5
3.8
4.0
4.2

4.8
4.8
4.5
4.8
4.8

4.8
4.7
4.7
4.8
4.8

4.3
4.7
4.3
4.6
4.2

4.2
4.0
4.0
4.5
4.0

4.8
4.8
4.5
4.5

4.8
4.8
4.3
4.7

4.7
4.8
3.7
4.6

4.7
4.7
3.5
4.2

Please provide three or more recommendations for improvement of this particular group and/or SPP's overall organizational group structure.
Spend some time each year on Strategic Issues that will or could impact the financial position of SPP. We should spend more time on evaluating the risk profile of decisions
made within SPP. We should evaluate decision quality process used at SPP to determine if it is effective.
Regarding overall org group structure - consider providing org groups with clear authority to eliminate (as much as possible) debating the same issue at multiple groups including
the Board of Directors
1. Better formalization and optimization of meeting schedule and specific action items that cover responsibilities of Finance Committee. 2. Continued improvement in and
emphasis on performance reviews and reporting and linkage with MOPC and SPC 3. Membership development and training

Please share any additional comments
Improved effectiveness can be achieved through better linkages in areas of overlapping responsibilities with Oversight, Strategic Planning and MOPC

FC
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Report to the Finance Committee
April 9, 2018

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the Finance Committee:
Larry Altenbaumer
Sandra Bennett
Kelly Harrison
Laura Kapustka
Bruce Scherr
Michael Wise

Director
American Electric Power
Westar Energy
Lincoln Electric System
Director
Golden Spread Electric Coop

Activity Update
The SPP Finance Committee, at its January 2018 meeting, instructed staff to inform the Committee of
final actions taken with respects to the renewal of commercial insurance coverages and the acquisition of
cyber-insurance limits.
SPP, and its broker, continued negotiations with the various insurers concerning limits and premiums.
SPP ultimately arrived at a decision to adjust limits for excess liability and cyber liability insurance to put
in place a program that mitigated SPP’s financial exposure and fit within its budget limits for insurance.
SPP choose to reduce its excess liability limits to $55MM from $75MM and direct those premium savings
to fund acquisition of $20MM in cyber-insurance limits. All other line premiums were renewed at existing
limits and were within the approved budget. The table below contains the 2018-19 budgeted and actual
premiums.
2018-19 Corporate Insurance Program Premiums and Fees
Renewals
Millions of Dollars
Budget
& Additions Over/(Under)
Excess Liability *
Cyber Liability **
Directors & Officers
Workers Compensation
Other Coverages & Fees

$0.80
$0.10
$0.06
$0.17

$0.66
$0.11
$0.10
$0.06
$0.16

$0.13
($0.11)
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Program Premiums & Fees

$1.13

$1.10

$0.03

* Excess liability limits were reduced from $75MM to $55MM
** Cyber liability coverage was purchased with limits of $20MM

All coverages, including the cyber policy, were bound as of March 27, 2018 with policy effective dates of
April 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019.

SPP Prioritization
MOPC Presentation – Tom Dunn
04/10/2018
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Process Overview
Cyber
Security
Req’s

Efficiencies

Quality
Enhancements

Enhancement
Requests

Req’d
Maint.

Revision
Requests
Defects

Mandatory

1

2

3

4

5

SPP Analysis
& Ranking Process

6

7

8

2

What Makes Up The Ranking Funnel?
Enhancement
Requests

Cyber
Security
Req’s

Efficiencies

Quality
Enhancements
Req’d
Maint.

Revision
Requests
Defects

Mandatory

Ranking
Process

Member
Input

Mandated

New Features

Compliance/
Cyber Security

Mods to
Functionality

FERC Order

ROI

Maint. &
Support

3

Inputs to the Ranking Process
Mandatory

Member
Priorities

New Projects
& Initiatives

Ranking
Process
Requires
Balance

Needs
•FERC Orders
•Maintenance Projects
•Compliance/Cyber
Security
•Etc.

Constraints
•Stakeholder Support
•Budget Availability
•Internal Resources
•Other Project
Dependencies

Project Pipeline

4

2018 Completed Work
Activity

Capital Cost Comments
($MM)

Completed
Projects

$0.9 GRC Tool
Engineering Hub

Completed
Revision Requests

$0.0 RR 242 – Reg Deployment Priority
Change

Other

$1.5 ESX Cluster, F5 Load Balancers,VNX
Storage, enhancements to i) markets
UI, ii) API, and iii) XML notifications

5

Memorandum
To:

SPP Finance Committee

From:

Carl Stelly and Lauren Krigbaum

CC:

Michael Desselle and Tom Dunn

Date:

April 9, 2018

Re:

SPP Finance Committee Action Item #4

In the January 15, 2018 Finance Committee meeting, Committee members created an action item, “Staff
report on adequacy of SPP’s processes and controls during and post MWTG implementation.” It is the
opinion of the SPP Director of Compliance and the SPP Director of Internal Audit that SPP’s current
processes and controls are adequate as we contemplate the MWTG implementation. SPP has various types
and levels of business and audit controls and supporting processes. These same processes and controls will
be reviewed and revised as necessary during the MWTG implementation. In addition, SPP is in the process
of populating a Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) tool. The first controls to populate the GRC tool
will be those related to the NERC Reliability Standards. Once these controls are loaded, the GRC tool be
used as the main mechanism to identify, track and test controls. After the first phase of populating the GRC
tool is completed, additional controls will be added so that in the end all “key” SPP controls will be located
within this tool. In addition, the following processes are in place to enforce SPP controls:
Project Management Office (PMO) Activities
The SPP PMO will manage the MWTG Implementation as a “Program”. A Program encompasses a series
of related/interdependent projects that, in aggregate, achieve the objective of integrating the Mountain West
Transmission Group into SPP. This includes adding the MWTG entities and their embedded entities to the
Integrated Marketplace, creating a west Balancing Authority (BA), implementing Reliability Coordination
(potentially a different date than Markets), and implementing Planning Coordination (potentially a different
date than Markets).
As part of the Mountain West Implementation Program, there are separate enterprise-wide projects for
components under the program that will follow SPP’s PMLC. These include:
• MW – Balancing Authority
• MW – Engineering
• MW – IT Applications
• MW – IT Hardware
• MW – Markets
• MW – On-boarding
• MW – Reliability
• MW – Settlements
• MW – SPP Services
• MW – Congestion Hedging (TCR)
Program controls include Internal Readiness, External Readiness, Quality Management, Budget
Management, Time Tracking, Risk Management (including potential risks, the potential impact of the risks
on the program and contingency/mitigation plans), Issue and Decision Management, and Scope and Budget
Change Management. The MWTG Program will provide stage-gate information and Project Review and

Priorization Committee status reports at the program level. Weekly status reports will be made to Executive
Management to communicate the status (health) of the program and related projects. The MWTG Program
and each related project will also utilize the Project Management Life Cycle (PMLC) Project Roadmap to
help guide them through the SPP PMLC, including the Software Development Lifecycle (SDLC) SOC1
audit controls (see below).
Internal Audit (IA) personnel will be assigned to the MWTG Implementation Program and its related
projects (especially those impacting systems/processes included in the scope of the SOC1 audit). As a part
of these assignments, IA personnel will advise process owners regarding new/revised controls (audit and/or
business) and will help facilitate walkthrough discussions with the external auditors as necessary.
There are other projects in the SPP project portfolio that impact or will be associated with the MWTG
Implementation. Each project follows or will follow SPP’s PMLC:
• Settlements System Replacement Project
• Reliability Communications Tool
• Replicated Data Server Upgrade
SOC1 Controls Audit
SPP annually engages a Certified Public Accounting (CPA) firm to perform an audit of control objectives
and activities (Service Organization Controls [SOC1]/Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements
[SSAE] No. 18) placed in operation and tests of operating effectiveness pertaining to the Integrated
Marketplace and Transmission Service Settlements System processes and supporting IT systems.
Certain established SOC1 control objectives and activities will be directly involved with the MWTG
implementation. These include:
•

Registration and Modeling – The control objective and control activities involve SPP’s
registration process and the approval to conduct business in the SPP markets and the input of
assets/data into the Centralized Modeling Tool for the SPP production models.

•

Local Security Administration – Once approved to conduct business in the SPP markets, a
corporate representative of the new MP/TO/TC must designate, on a signed Portal Local Security
Administrator (LSA) Confirmation Form, at least one person as the LSA. The LSA is then
responsible for approving digital certificates for personnel requiring access to the Marketplace
portal.

•

Software Development Life Cycle - SPP’s Software Development Life Cycle (SDLC)
methodology provides controls over the development of major software projects. As describe
above, the MWTG Implementation will be managed as a “Program”. A Program encompasses a
series of related/interdependent projects that, in aggregate, achieve the objective of integrating the
Mountain West Transmission Group into SPP. Any new software/application that will be
developed related to the MWTG Implementation will follow the SDLC control activities.

•

Change Management - SPP follows a formal IT change management methodology. This process
ensures that standardized methods and procedures are used for efficient and prompt handling of all
changes in order to minimize the impact to service quality, and consequently, to improve
day-to-day operations of SPP. Any changes to existing systems related to the MWTG
Implementation will follow this methodology, including any new software/application migrated
into the production environment as a result of the SDLC control objective.

As mentioned above, Internal Audit (IA) personnel will be assigned to the MWTG Implementation Program
and its related projects (especially those impacting systems/processes included in the scope of the SOC1
2

audit). As a part of these assignments, IA personnel will advise process owners regarding new/revised
controls (audit and/or business) and will help facilitate walkthrough discussions with the external auditors
as necessary.
Post MWTG implementation SPP will be audited against the established control objectives and activities.
The processes included in the scope of the audit include:
Business Process Objectives
Registration and Modeling
Local Security Administration
Day-Ahead Market
Real-Time Balancing Market
Market Solutions
Day Ahead Must-Offer Requirements
Market-to-Market
Transmission Congestion Right Markets
Z2 (Credit Stack)
Market Settlements
Transmission Settlements
Cash Clearance
Invoicing
Collection Activity

General IT Objectives
Physical Security
Logical Security
Change Management
Software Development Life Cycle
Computer Operations
Problem Management

Internal Audit Activities
Annually, SPP Internal Audit develops a flexible audit plan using a risk-based methodology that includes
risks and process/control concerns identified by management. The annual audit plan is submitted to the
Vice President, Process Integrity and Chief Compliance and Administrative Officer and the Oversight
Committee for review and approval, as well as periodic updates. Audits included in the annual audit plan
involve departments and processes throughout SPP. Results of audit engagements and follow-up reviews
are reported to applicable SPP Management, the Vice President of Process Integrity and Chief Compliance
and Administrative Officer and the Oversight Committee.
Related to the SOC1 audit, SPP Internal Audit facilitates annual risk assessments of the risks threatening
the achievement of the control objectives included in the scope of the SOC1 audit and updates/revises
control objective and control activity language where/when necessary (with approval from the business
owner and the external CPA firm). Internal Audit also conducts an independent review of all SOC1 control
objectives and activities. These reviews help to ensure the control activities are working as intended and
supporting documentation evidencing the activities is adequate. The reviews help the owners of control
activities prepare for the SOC1 audit and any resulting recommendations help strengthen the control
structure and/or the supporting documentation.
As mentioned above, Internal Audit personnel are assigned to all major SPP projects (especially those
impacting systems/processes included in the scope of the SOC1 audit) to advise process owners regarding
new/revised controls (audit and/or business) and help facilitate walkthrough discussions with the external
auditors as necessary.
Compliance Department Activities
SPP’s RTO Compliance department, along with the Reliability Standards department, both of which report
directly to the Director, Compliance, are responsible to ensure, as much as possible, the SPP business units
adhere to their processes and procedures and effectively follow the controls put in place. The Compliance
staff have an oversight role, but partner with the business units to develop appropriate interpretations of
NERC Reliability Standards (the Standards), to review processes and procedures that relate to compliance
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with the Standards, and review and approve, when appropriate, controls in place to ensure compliance with
those Standards.
The Reliability Standards staff facilitate a Reliability Standards Implementation Process (RSIP) that
involves business unit staff, Subject Matter Experts (SMEs), Compliance and other pertinent staff as the
changes evolve throughout the implementation process. This process will be leveraged to ensure any
Reliability Standards changes, including regional standard, will be appropriately incorporated into the
MWTG implementation project. At the completion of this process, the materials developed through the
process become the evidence necessary to ensure SPP’s compliance with the Standards.
The Compliance staff are responsible for performing its annual Risk Assessment which measures each of
the NERC Reliability Standards requirements that SPP is obligated to comply with. The Compliance staff
also utilize Reliability Standard Audit Worksheet (RSAW) reviews as a primary tool for the evaluation of
processes and procedures, controls and evidence needed to demonstrate compliance with Reliability
Standards. All requirements that are deemed medium to high compliance risk as part of the MWTG
implementation will be reviewed during the implementation project.
With respect to any items identified as potential compliance risks that are identified as part of the MWTG
project reviews, SPP staff will undertake focused investigations to determine the potential issue, the risks
associated with the issue, and the root cause of the potential compliance risk. Based on this assessment,
Compliance staff will oversee development and implementation of a corrective action plan to mitigate the
risk.
There are specific regional differences in a small number of the NERC Reliability Standards, and the
Compliance staff are already vetting the differences and preparing a plan to ensure the differences are
addressed in any readiness plan developed by any of the impacted business units. Aside for the regional
differences, SPP is not taking on any new Standards requirements that SPP is not already responsible to
comply with.
The Reliability Standards will employ a new staff member whose primary responsibility will be to work
with the MWTG program team to identify and review the processes and procedures, the controls, and the
RSAWs that will be developed as part of the MWTG effort. SPP Compliance and Reliability Standards
staff will work closely with the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC), the current Western
Interconnect Compliance Enforcement Authority, to continue to develop the relationships necessary to
properly manage any self-certifications, spot checks, audits, or other means Compliance Enforcement
Authorities utilize to judge compliance with the Standards. In fact, SPP is already subject to enforcement
as a registered Planning Coordinator in the Western Interconnection and have already successfully
completed multiple self-certifications and at least one spot check for some of those applicable Standards.
Finally, the SPP Compliance staff are currently beginning the implementation of the GRC tool, which will
help capture the controls developed throughout the organization to ensure compliance with the Standards.
The controls associated with the MWTG effort will be identified through the implementation plan and
inventoried within the GRC to provide insight into and oversight over these controls to Compliance staff
and to the business unit management. The GRC will also be a valuable tool in helping to assess the
effectiveness of the entire compliance controls inventory at SPP.
Through these existing processes and new initiatives identified, SPP staff will ensure the appropriate
measure of compliance risk and take the steps to mitigate or minimize that risk.
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MWTG Integration
Cost Tracking Matrix

Salary & Benefits

Description

Known Risks

Administrative

Maintenance & Communication

Outside Services

Other Expense

Relevant integration time reported by
existing and incremental FTEs charged at
standard rate (salary+benefits)

Travel & meeting costs directly related to the
integration

Computer hardware, software,
communications equipment that do not meet
capitalization threshold

Maintenance related to necessary hardware
and software enhancments. Communications
consists of data and telecom hardware and
circuit costs

External resources providing direct assistance
with the MWTG integration. Primarily
anticipated in the IT, Engineering,
Legal/Regulatory, Operations, and PMO
departments

Incremental interest expense associated
with the integration project

PWA time tracking tool will capture time.
Rates will be applied to time in Excel
spreadsheet.

Corporate level meeting costs tracked by meeting
planner using current processes. Individual costs
will be tracked thru automated expense reporting
tool as normal. Unique project code will be utilized
by the meeting planner to identify relevant
meetings. Project code will also be established in
automated expense reporting tool

Normal purchasing processes utlizing MWTG
project codes to appropriately identify and
classify relevant costs associated with the
integration project

Normal purchasing processes utlizing MWTG
project codes to appropriately identify and
classify relevant costs associated with the
integration project

Normal purchasing processes utlizing MWTG
project codes to appropriately identify and
classify relevant costs associated with the
integration project

Calculations will be performed on quarterly
basis mirroring existing process for
capitalized interest on enterprise capital
projects.

Directors to review and approve all staff
time. PMO to review all data for
completeness and reasonableness.
Escalation process established in the event
of non-compliance with established
reporting process.

Corporate meeting expenses are reviewed during
normal month end processes by accounting. AMEX
statements (containing meeting expenses) are
additionally reviewed by VP-Corporate Services. All
employee expense reports are approved by direct
supervisor. Secondary reviews of expense reports
occur in accounting before recording/payment
processing.

Existing purchasing process has numerous,
rigorous control points supported by corporate
policy. Additional measures will be added to
ensure accuracy and completeness (add'l
reviewers from MWTG leadership will be
required for each requisition processed)

Existing purchasing process has numerous,
rigorous control points supported by corporate
policy. Additional measures will be added to
ensure accuracy and completeness (add'l
reviewers from MWTG leadership will be
required for each requisition processed)

Existing purchasing process has numerous,
rigorous control points supported by corporate
policy. Additional measures will be added to
ensure accuracy and completeness (add'l
reviewers from MWTG leadership will be
required for each requisition processed)

Calulations are performed by senior
accountants and reviewed by accounting
management prior to recording. Also
subject to review during month end
closeout process.

Company is inexperienced in tracking time.
Labor capitalized dependant on accuracy
and completeness of time reported

While appropriate codes will be available to
employees, if employees do not select appropriate
expense codes in completing their expense reports,
MWTG expenses could be under-reported.

None above normal risk. The purchasing
process is very mature and is embedded with
numerous control checkpoints from the time a
requisition is processed to the point of
payment execution

None above normal risk. The purchasing
process is very mature and is embedded with
numerous control checkpoints from the time a
requisition is processed to the point of
payment execution

None above normal risk. The purchasing
process is very mature and is embedded with
numerous control checkpoints from the time a
requisition is processed to the point of
payment execution

None

Process to Track Expenses

Relevant Controls

Travel & Meetings

Additional Notes
Monthly report will be developed for program management to facilitate a holistic review of all items being reported as MWTG project costs in comparison to the established budget.
This monthly report will be in addition to the normal review that accounting and management perform on the corporate results, which will include MWTG costs
Regulatory Asset account will be subject to monthly reconciliation procedures wherby supporting details will be reconciled to the cumulative asset balance and unusual activity (if any) can be researched and adjusted as necessary.

Monthly Financial Reporting Package
February 2018
(2017 Preliminary and Unaudited)

SPP Executive Summary – February
2018 Over / (Under) Recovery

GRR & Available Cash, Compensation and Outside Services Expenses
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Southwest Power Pool
2018 Financial Commentary
February 28, 2018
(in thousands)

Summary
2018 FY
Forecast
Revenues
Expenses
Net Income/(Loss)

2018 FY
Budget

$195,369
190,213
$5,155

$194,212
190,752
$3,460

Fav/(Unfav)
Variance
$1,157
539
$1,695

0.6%
0.3%
(49.0%)

Revenue
2018 FY
Forecast
Tariff Administration Service
FERC Fees & Assessments
NERC ERO Regional Entity Revenue
Miscellaneous Income
Contract Services Revenue
Annual Non-Load Dues
Total Revenue

2018 FY
Budget

$164,749
20,348
5,154
4,195
365
558
$195,369

$164,001
20,769
4,724
3,963
156
600
$194,212

Fav/(Unfav)
Variance
$748
(421)
430
232
209
(42)
$1,157

0.5%
(2.0%)
9.1%
5.8%
134.2%
(7.0%)
0.6%

9
The annual billing determinants for the 2018 budget were based on year-to-date actual data as of July 2017, with assumptions for peak demand for the
months of August through December. The 2017 coincident peak load associated with Tariff Administrative Service revenue is forecasted at 384 million
10a slightly favorable variance to budget.
MWh as compared to the budgeted amount of 382 million MWh, which results in
The budget for FERC Fees Assessments revenue reflects the estimated rate for Schedule 12 for 2018. The 2018 rate is currently under review, and
changes to the forecast are likely forthcoming.
The overall favorable variance in NERC ERO Regional Entity revenue is primarily the result of additional expenses associated with the retention
payout for RE staff.
Miscellaneous Income primarily includes revenues associated with engineering studies along with various other revenue sources such as the MISO
settlement and miscellaneous rebates. Unbudgeted vendor rebates contribute to $0.1 of the favorable variance.
The budget assumed the OVEC contract would be terminated after the first quarter. The Contract Services Revenue forecast assumes SPP will
continue to provide services under the existing contract through July 31st.

Page 2

Southwest Power Pool
2018 Financial Commentary
February 28, 2018
(in thousands)

Expense
2018 FY
Forecast
Salary & Benefits
Assessments & Fees
Communications
Maintenance
Outside Services (Including RSC)
Administrative
Travel & Meetings
Depreciation
Other Expenses
Total Expense

2018 FY
Budget

$96,948
20,269
4,302
17,999
14,397
5,085
3,001
19,208
9,004
$190,213

$96,056
20,269
4,474
18,366
14,588
5,210
3,097
19,390
9,302
$190,752

Fav/(Unfav)
Variance
($893)
0
172
366
191
126
95
183
298
$539

(0.9%)
0.0%
3.8%
2.0%
1.3%
2.4%
3.1%
0.9%
3.2%
0.3%

Most expenses remain relatively flat as compared to the budget.
Salary & benefits are expected to exceed budget partially due to retention payout for the RE staff as well as a lower than expected vacancy rate
(average 2% as compared to 3% in the budget).
Other expenses includes interest expense, capitalized interest, investment income, valuation adjustments, and various other income and expense
amounts. Due to the unpredictability, the only amounts budgeted in this category are interest expense and capitalized interest. Interest expense is
associated with debt issuances used for capital expenditures.
The valuation adjustments contribute to the overall favorable variance in other expenses and are not reflected in the net revenue requirement
(NRR) recovery calculation since they are considered non-cash items.
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Southwest Power Pool
Monthly Financial Overview
February 28, 2018
(in thousands)

Actual
Jan-18
Income
Tariff Administrative Service
Fees & Assessments
Contract Services Revenue
Miscellaneous Income
Total Income
Expense
Salary & Benefits
Employee Travel
Administrative
Assessments & Fees
Meetings
Communications
Maintenance
Services
Regional State Committee
Depreciation
Total Expense
Other Income/(Expense)
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Capitalized Interest
Change in Valuation of Swap
Other Income/Expense
Unrealized Gain on Investment
Chg in Employee Benefit Plan Funded Status
Net Other Income (Expense)
Net Income (Loss)
2018 Headcount
Approved Budgeted Positions
Actual/Forecast Headcount (Incl. Vacancy)
Actual/Forecast Positions (Excl. Vacancy)
Headcount Vacancy Run rate

NRR Over / (Under) Recovery

Actual
Feb-18

$14,269 $12,483
2,565
2,795
44
44
492
417
17,372 15,740

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Apr-18
May-18
Jun-18
Jul-18
Aug-18
Sep-18
Oct-18
Nov-18
Dec-18
Mar-18
$13,980
2,351
65
317
16,713

$13,529
2,430
65
317
16,341

$13,980
2,341
65
317
16,703

$13,529
2,633
65
354
16,581

$13,980
1,633
3
317
15,932

$13,980
2,135
3
326
16,443

$13,529
1,933
3
326
15,790

$13,980
1,755
3
326
16,063

$13,529
1,606
3
363
15,501

FY 2018
Forecast

FY 2018 Variance
Budget Fav/(Unfav)

$13,980 $164,749 $164,001
1,881
26,060
26,093
3
365
156
326
4,195
3,963
16,189 195,369 194,212

FY 2017
Actual

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

$748
(32)
209
232
1,157

$162,847
27,496
533
5,745
196,621

$1,902
(1,436)
(168)
(1,550)
(1,252)

8,251
127
195
1,689
72
258
1,115
826
8
1,831
14,372

7,958
171
420
1,689
66
287
1,387
1,224
25
1,691
14,918

8,603
184
252
1,689
46
286
1,401
930
28
1,466
14,885

8,251
185
606
1,689
108
286
1,651
1,207
28
1,496
15,507

8,164
199
293
1,689
118
323
1,590
1,273
28
1,510
15,186

8,263
198
511
1,689
60
323
1,431
1,151
28
1,569
15,221

7,914
178
382
1,689
88
423
1,475
1,287
28
1,593
15,056

7,899
182
341
1,689
58
423
1,490
1,145
28
1,610
14,864

7,914
163
319
1,689
33
423
1,516
1,096
28
1,618
14,798

7,873
170
1,063
1,689
137
423
1,545
1,249
28
1,613
15,791

7,859
184
345
1,689
71
423
1,551
1,253
28
1,628
15,030

8,001
164
358
1,689
39
423
1,848
1,447
28
1,583
15,580

96,948
2,105
5,085
20,269
896
4,302
17,999
14,088
308
19,208
181,209

96,056
2,168
5,210
20,269
929
4,474
18,366
14,257
331
19,390
181,450

(893)
63
126
0
32
172
366
169
22
183
240

94,650
2,023
4,656
21,663
1,040
3,504
16,099
12,417
202
27,716
183,971

(2,299)
(82)
(429)
1,394
144
(798)
(1,900)
(1,671)
(106)
8,509
2,761

5
(811)
165
512
(129)

5
(802)
(60)
(355)
(1,212)

(805)
19
(787)

(785)
(785)

(789)
(789)

(785)
26
(759)

(780)
(780)

(779)
(779)

(775)
35
(741)

(763)
(763)

(759)
(759)

(763)
43
(720)

10
(9,398)
122
105
157
(9,004)

(9,424)
122
(9,302)

10
26
105
157
298

165
(10,227)
63
789
(1,414)
1,499
6,434
(2,691)

(155)
829
59
(789)
1,519
(1,342)
(6,434)
(6,313)

$2,871

($391)

$1,041

$49

$727

$601

$97

$800

$251

($491)

($288)

($112)

$5,155

$3,460

$1,695

$9,959

($4,804)

619
601
617

619
603
616

620
603
613

620
601
613

621
601
613

621
601
613

609
609
613

609
609
613

609
604
611

609
604
611

609
604
611

609
604
611

609
604
611

609
604

3%

3%

3%

3%

3%

3%

0%

0%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

$4,485

$957

($2,640)

$1,629

$1,889

($3,262)

$1,705

$1,397

($3,732)

$1,016

$851

($4,082)

$3,500
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610
595
615

1%

$3,288

Southwest Power Pool
Current Month Financial Overview
February 28, 2018
(in thousands)

Current Month Compared to Forecast YTD Actual Compared to YTD Budget
Feb-2018 Feb-2018
Variance
Feb-2018 Feb-2018 Variance
Actual
Forecast Fav/(Unfav)
Actual
Budget Fav/(Unfav)
Income
Tariff Administrative Service
Fees & Assessments
Contract Services Revenue
Miscellaneous Income
Total Income

FY Forecast Compared to FY Budget
FY 2018
FY 2018
Variance
Forecast
Budget
Fav/(Unfav)

$12,483
2,795
44
417
15,740

$12,627
2,637
44
317
15,625

($145)
158
101
114

$26,752
5,361
89
910
33,111

$27,333
5,636
89
661
33,719

($581)
(275)
()
249
(608)

$164,749
26,060
365
4,195
195,369

$164,001
26,093
156
3,963
194,212

$748
(32)
209
232
1,157

Expense
Salary & Benefits
Employee Travel
Administrative
Assessments & Fees
Meetings
Communications
Maintenance
Services
Regional State Committee
Depreciation
Total Expense

7,958
171
420
1,689
66
287
1,387
1,224
25
1,691
14,918

8,139
189
329
1,689
77
287
1,429
1,499
28
1,794
15,459

181
17
(90)

15,948
396
694
3,378
192
746
3,134
2,474
55
3,705
30,722

(261)
98
79
$0
55
200
632
424
22
183
1,432

96,948
2,105
5,085
20,269
896
4,302
17,999
14,088
308
19,208
181,209

96,056
2,168
5,210
20,269
929
4,474
18,366
14,257
331
19,390
181,450

(893)
63
126

11
()
42
275
3
102
541

16,209
298
615
3,378
137
545
2,502
2,050
33
3,522
29,290

Other Income/(Expense)
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Capitalized Interest
Change in Valuation of Swap
Other Income/Expense
Unrealized Gain on Investment
Net Other Income (Expense)

5
(802)
(60)
(355)
(1,212)

(793)
(793)

5
(9)
(60)
(355)
(420)

10
(1,613)
105
157
(1,341)

(1,571)
(1,571)

10
(42)
105
157
230

10
(9,398)
122
105
157
(9,004)

(9,424)
122
(9,302)

10
26
105
157
298

($391)

($626)

$236

$2,480

$1,426

$1,054

$5,155

$3,460

$1,695

603

598

5

603

619

(16)

611

609

2

Net Income (Loss)
Headcount
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32
172
366
169
22
183
240

Southwest Power Pool
Balance Sheet
February 28, 2018
(in thousands)

2/28/2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Equivalents
Restricted Cash Deposits
Accounts Receivable (net)
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

12/31/2017

Net Change

$136,194
365,322
17,055
18,630
$537,201

$100,496
340,612
74,391
8,539
$524,038

$35,698
24,710
(57,336)
10,091
$13,163

78,116
2,692
27,232

79,774
5,499
24,456

(1,658)
(2,807)
2,776

$645,241

$633,767

$11,474

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (net)
Customer Deposits
Current Maturities of LT Debt
Other Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

$22,010
375,960
23,378
127,533
2,386
551,267

$75,844
340,612
23,359
98,801
3,928
542,544

(53,834)
35,349
19
28,731
(1,542)
8,722

Long Term Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Capital Lease Obligation
Other Long Term Liabilities
Total Long Term Liabilities

213,641
1,482
33,093
248,215

213,677
1,966
32,301
247,944

(36)
(484)
791
271

Net Income
Members' Equity
Total Members' Equity

2,480
(156,721)
(154,240)

9,959
(166,680)
(156,721)

(7,479)
9,959
2,480

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

$645,241

$633,767

$11,474

Total Fixed Assets
Total Other Assets
Investments
Total Assets
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Southwest Power Pool
Headcount Analysis
February 28, 2018
Current Month Actual vs. Budget
Actual
Budget
Over/(Under)
Feb-18
Feb-18
Budget

Year End Forecast vs. Budget
2018
2018
Over/(Under)
Forecast
Budget
Budget

Administration

49

49

0

49

49

0

Process Integrity

49

54

(5)

56

54

2

Operations

162

162

0

162

162

0

Information Technology

161

162

(1)

165

164

1

Engineering

76

80

(4)

80

80

0

Regulatory Policy & General Counsel

26

27

(1)

27

27

0

Corporate Services

31

30

1

30

30

0

Market Monitoring

16

16

0

16

16

0

Market Design

6

6

0

6

6

0

Interregional Relations

1

3

(2)

1

3

(2)

Communications & Gov't Affairs

6

7

(1)

7

7

0

SPP Regional Entity

20

23

(3)

12

11

1

603

619

(16)

611

609

2

(7)

(18)

11

604

591

13

Total Positions
Vacancy Estimate
Total Headcount Including Vacancy

Headcount changes:
2018 Budgeted Positions (RTO and RE)
RE positions eliminated after dissolution
Total RTO Budget
Add 3 RE positions to RTO
Eliminate 2 positions in Operations
RTO absorbs 12 vs. 11 RTO positions
Total RTO Forecast

621
(12)
609
3
(2)
1
611

Update on RE Staffing
RE Beginning budgeted positions
Transfers to RTO open position (Nov 2017)
Resignations (Mar 2018)
Transfers to RTO new position (Jul 2018)
Retirements (Aug 2018)

23
(1)
(5)
(3)
(2)

Remaining Positions transfer to RTO

12

Notes: The 2018 budget assumed the RE would be dissolved by July 2018, and SPP would retain 11 of the 23 staff members. This
assumption was for budgeting purposes only and did not negate the possibility of retaining all 23 staff members if necessary. Although
SPP committed to ensuring the continued employment of the RE staff, the 2018 budget assumed 12 RE staff would voluntary resign from
SPP.
Two RE staff have resigned and one filled an open position within the RTO, which results in total RE staff of 20 as of February 2018. The
forecast also includes three formal resignations in March and two retirements by the dissolution of the RE. Additionally, three RE staff will
be added to the RTO to augment functions within compliance and interregional affairs, which brings the total number of RE staff to be
absorbed by the RTO to 12 (as compared to 11 assumed in the budget).
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc. - Finance Committee Project Dashboard
1 - Reliability Assurance

Project Name
-----------------Linkage to Strategic Plan

2 - Maintain An Economical, Optimized Transmission System

Project Description

SPP Owning Officer

3 - Enhance and Optimize Interdependent Systems

Approved Budget
---------------Est. Cost at
Completion

Remaining Milestones

4 - Enhance Member Value and Affordability

Comments

ACTIVE PROJECTS

Identity and Access
Management Phase 2
--------------1

Automation of identity and access system to ensure CIP Compliance

Sugg

$0.5M
------------------$0.5M

Design - 4/20/2018
Build - 5/23/18

The Circuit Redesign
---------------------4

Update to SPP’s employee intranet: improved functionality, enhanced ability to find
information, and an improved design to drive greater employee collaboration.

Ross

$0.1M
------------------$0.3M

Testing – 4/16/18
Implementation – 4/30/18
Closeout – 5/31/18

Online VSAT
---------------------1

The On-Line Voltage Security Assessment Tool (VSAT) software provides SPP
comprehensive analyses for predicting and preventing voltage insecurity problems.

Rew

$1.4M
------------------$1.0M

Implementation Phase I – 04/23/18
Implementation Phase II - 6/1/18
Project Closure – 6/30/18

In planning phase. Spend to date: $0.1M.

On schedule and on target for adjusted budget.
(Original Budget: $0.1M, Adjusted Budget: $0.25M).

On schedule and on budget
Phased approach for Real Time mode first, followed by Study and
Look Ahead modes.

Online TSAT
---------------------1

Transient Stability Analysis Tool (TSAT) will be used to ensure power transfers do not
cause a voltage collapse event or blackout.

Rew

$1.4M
------------------$1.4M

Planning phase – 4/2/18
Required enhancements to other systems - 7/6/19
Software install & Scenario Dev – 12/3/18
Testing and Training – 3/1/19
Implementation – 3/15/19
Project Closure – 4/12/19

TTSE DTS Upgrade
Project - Phase 2A
---------------------1

Enhancement to the current DTS to incorporate market system updates and provide a
TTSE that performs more closely to Real-Time Production Systems.

Rew

$0.2M
------------------$0.2M

Closeout - 4/30/18

Close out scheduled for end of April.

TTSE DTS Upgrade
Project - Phase 3
---------------------1

Enhancement to the current DTS to incorporate virtualization tools mimicking those
available in the control center.

Rew

$0.1M
------------------$0.1M

Build - 9/29/18
Testing - 11/30/18

Internal project to develop visualization tools for the training
simulator that mimic the production environment. The $90K
covers software license costs.

Dunn

$5.3M
------------------$5.3M

Build – 10/31/18
Testing – 3/29/19
Implementation – 5/1/19

Settlements Replacement
Replacement of the current Market and Transmission Settlement Systems with a
---------------------custom designed single high performance scalable system solution.
1
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4/2/2018

In planning phase. Schedule and budget baselined as planned.
Awaiting estimates from the vendor.

On schedule and on budget. Accelerated the development effort
to ensure the Settlements system is staged correctly for the
MWTG Implementation.
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc. - Finance Committee Project Dashboard
1 - Reliability Assurance

Project Name
-----------------Linkage to Strategic Plan

ITSM Tool Upgrade
---------------------1

2 - Maintain An Economical, Optimized Transmission System

Project Description

Phase 1 - Remedy Upgrade (Incident, Problem, Change, Asset, etc.) Current Remedy
Version is at end of life for Vendor support.

SPP Owning Officer

9a2. April 2018 Consolidated Finance Committee Report_20180402.xlsx

Approved Budget
---------------Est. Cost at
Completion

Sugg

$1M
------------------$0.9M

Rew

$0.0M
------------------$0.0M

Phase 2 - Implement BPPM -Performance Manager (monitoring software)

Reliability Communication
Tool
Project would create an application to facilitate the systematic issuance, receipt, and
---------------------auditable documentation of operating instructions.
1

3 - Enhance and Optimize Interdependent Systems

4/2/2018

Remaining Milestones

4 - Enhance Member Value and Affordability

Comments

Phase 1
Install/Builds - 06/15/18
Training - 7/15/18
Cutover - 8/15/18
Phase 2
RFP - 5/1/18
Install/Builds - 7/15/2018
Parallel Eval - 10/15/2018
Cutover - 12/21/2018

Requirements - 3/30/2018
Design - TBD

Phase 2 has a dependency for phase 1 to be in production before
Phase 2 can complete the cutover.

Requirements document nearing completion.
Design to begin week of 4/2/18.
Decision was made to use internal staff for the development
therefore no capital expenditures
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc. - Finance Committee Project Dashboard
1 - Reliability Assurance

Project Name
-----------------Linkage to Strategic Plan

2 - Maintain An Economical, Optimized Transmission System

Project Description

SPP Owning Officer

3 - Enhance and Optimize Interdependent Systems

Approved Budget
---------------Est. Cost at
Completion

4 - Enhance Member Value and Affordability

Remaining Milestones

Comments

Rew

Deferred Project:
Budget Not
Approved

TBD

Not Started.
-------------------------------FERC has determined that more information is needed before
taking action. This ruling has been deferred and a technical
conference has been scheduled for early April.

Rew

Deferred Project:
Budget Not
Approved

TBD

Not Started.

Rew

Deferred Project:
Budget Not
Approved

TBD

Not Started.

DEFERRED, CONTINGENT OR DECLINED PROJECTS

Distributed Generation
Functionality

Enhancement to SPP’s markets to allow participation by distributed generation
resources and storage devices.
‐

The project will update the process that calculates firm rights used in real time
Freeze Date Replacement congestion processes in accordance with new rules and requirements agreed upon by
CMP (SPP, MISO, PJM, TVA, AECI, MHEB, LGEE) members.

Replicated Data Server
Upgrade

‐
‐
‐
The replicated data server gives SPP transmission operators
and transmission owners
‐
a near real time view of SPP’s real time models, substation one line drawings, CADA
measurements, Powerflow solution results, and real time contingency analysis warnings
and violations.

Completed Projects

GRC Tool Project
---------------------1

Implementation of a governance, risk, and compliance (GRC) system.

Engineering Hub
---------------------3

Development of an internal web-based front end that provides engineering data review
and editing capability.
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Desselle

$1M
------------------$0.3M

Nickell

$0.8M
------------------$0.5M

4/2/2018

Closeout - 02/17/18

Closed – 1/19/18

This project is complete.

This project is complete.
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Status
Green
Yellow
Red

Project Phase
PREP
Initiating
Planning
Executing
Closing

Impacting/Facing
Yes - Facing
Yes - Impacting
No

Memorandum
To:

Tom Dunn

From:

Don Shipley

Date:

March 15, 2018

Re:

Settlement System Replacement Project Update

During the June 2017 Finance Committee meeting, SPP Staff provided a detailed review of the Settlement
System Replacement Project. The review addressed project objectives, timelines, budget, risk, and
mitigations. SPP staff committed to provide periodic updates of this project to the Finance Committee.
The project is on schedule to achieve the stated objectives of consolidating the two current settlement
systems into a single high performance fully automated solution by May 1, 2019. The project establishes
five major delivery milestones:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Formula Builder
Calculation Engine & Data Visualization
Operational User Interfaces & Business Process
Audit & Workflow
Transition to internal support

The first two milestones listed represent the core foundation of the new system, and those milestones are
complete. This foundational work represents thirty-five percent of the total project development. The
remaining milestones require less intensive development; however, the testing requirements of these
milestones are extensive.
The communication between the vendor and the SPP project team is continuing to develop. During the last
few weeks, the vendor and the project team have focused on SPP’s expectation for vendor testing of product
deliverables. This is the first significant area of concern to arise during the project. Project leaders for SPP
and the vendor are mitigating this concern, and the product testing is improving.
Project Budget
The project remains within the approved budget of $5.3MM with an actual spend thru February 2018 of
$2.3MM. The project will continue to track favorable to budget for the remaining project development.
Project Risk
Two areas of concern have been identified:
1) Scope creep: The project scope includes several customer requested enhancements. No changes to
scope will be allowed after April 30, 2018.
2) MWTG collisions: Primary concerns about internal resource availability during MWTG
integration. Leadership of this project is engaged in the MWTG project team to ensure both
initiatives are achieved, without delay or additional costs.
Please let me know if you have any additional questions.
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Financial Metrics

F.1.1. Admin Fee Measurement

Financial Metrics

F.1.2. Admin Fee Measurement

Financial Metrics

F.1.4. Admin Fee Measurement

F.2. Credit
% of Late Transmission Payments

9%
6%
3%

Transmission ($000s)

% Late Payments
Market ($000s)

Late Payments
Total Payments
% Late Payments

$400

Jan 17

$933
$39,848
2%

Jan 17

$0
$89,182
0%

Feb 17

$0
$40,859
0%

Feb 17

$9,047
$62,892
14%

Mar 17

$0
$48,928
0%

Mar 17

Apr 17

$112
$45,594
0%

Apr 17

$59
$3
$66,121 $103,871
0%
0%

May 17

$534
$48,335
1%

May 17

$125
$80,999
0%

Jun 17

Uncollectible ($000s)

Transmission
Market

Jul 17

Jul 17

$0
$60,532
0%

Transmission Short Pays

$580
$93,311
1%

Aug 17

$16
$47,373
0%

Aug 17

$19
$72,038
0%

Sep 17

$3,130
$49,910
6%

Sep 17

$29
$59,473
0%

Oct 17

$534
$49,987
1%

Oct 17

$340
$84,790
0%

Nov 17

$1,745
$51,403
3%

Nov 17

$13
$68,822
0%

12 mo

Dec 17

$552
$46,057
1%

Dec 17

$463
$82,220
1%

$7,757
$560,624
1%
12 mo

$10,678
$924,250
1%

Market Short Pays

$40

in thousands

$30

$0

Market

5%

Jun 17

$100

Short Pays ($000s)

10%

$0
$45,936
0%

$200

Transmission

15%

$201
$46,394
0%

$300
in thousands

Financial Metrics

Total Payments

20%

0%

0%

Late Payments

% of Late Market Payments

25%
% of Total Payout

% of Total Payout

12%

$20
$10
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

Jan 17

Feb 17

Mar 17

Apr 17

May 17

Jun 17

Jul 17

Aug 17

Sep 17

Oct 17

Nov 17

Dec 17

12 mo

Jan 17

Feb 17

Mar 17

Apr 17

May 17

Jun 17

Jul 17

Aug 17

Sep 17

Oct 17

Nov 17

Dec 17

12 mo

$0
$0
$0
$0

$58
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$94
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$180
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$332
$0
$0
$0

F.3. Settlement Disputes
75

Total # of Open Disputes (at month-end)

60

60

45

45

30

30

15

15

-

-

$200

in thousands

Financial Metrics

75

Average Days Outstanding (granted in month)

125

Average Dispute Amount (granted in month 000's)

$160

100

$120

75

$80

50

$40

25

$0

-

Oct 16

Total # of Open Disputes (at
month-end)
Average Days Outstanding
(granted in month)
Average Dispute Amount
(granted in month 000's)
# of Resettlements
(published in month)

Jan 17

Feb 17

Mar 17

Apr 17

# of Resettlements (published in month)

Nov 16

Dec 16

May 17

Jun 17

13

5

22

6

6

5

3

7

5

11

8

10

1

10

1

17

$2.2

$1.0

$12.0

$43.8

$87.0

$39.4

$37.5

$20.6

$0.0

$4.5

$1.1

$1.0

$0.0

$0.0

$16.4

68

44

52

57

57

66

56

67

93

64

57

66

67

62

61

14
-

Jul 17

Aug 17

Sep 17

Oct 17

Nov 17

Dec 17

2

2

6

17

26

23

13

5

9

2

15

8

SPP Member-Facing Member-Impacting
Portfolio Report Summary
REVISION REQUESTS
In Flight/Current Release

CURRENT QUARTER

Pending
Estimated Cost of Pending Items
ENHANCEMENT REQUESTS
In Flight/Current Release

Pending
Estimated Cost of Pending Items

0

18

17

1

Column1

Estimated Cost of Pending Items

$2,000,327

•
•
•
•

-$83,705

Column1
16

7

9

89

91

-2

$2,830,000

$2,935,000

-$105,000

8

14

-6

7

6

1

$404,004

$404,004

$0

Column1

Column1

Notes and Qualifications

•

CHANGE
0

$1,916,622

Pending

PROJECTS
In Flight/Current Release

PREVIOUS QUARTER
0

This list is not all inclusive of all SPP planned Revision Requests, enhancement requests or portfolio
projects. Specific criteria was used for this report to only include MI and MF items, RRs with system or
process changes and large technology projects.
For any item in flight or in a current release, the cost estimates are not included.
For any project or RR, any cost estimates given are the internal impact assessment provided (which
includes SPP resource estimates as well as external costs).
For enhancements, any cost estimates given are a high-level estimate in a dollar range and include
internal costs.
Items shaded in blue in the enhancements requests section indicate items that are new since the last
quarterly report was published.

Revision Requests - Open
RR#

RR0113
RR0116,
RR0137,
RR0142
RR0200
RR0235
RR0203
RR0210
RR0222
RR0229
RR0231
RR0234
RR0243
RR0245

RR Name

Node Connectivity Requirement Enhancement
Quick-Start Real-Time Commitment
Quick-Start Appendix G and ECC Clean-up
Quick-Start Multi-Configuration
Design Change for BSS and OCL Distribution
Correction to RR200
Adding Second Step to Monthly ARR Allocation
Contingency Reserve Deployment Tests
MCR Configuration Identification
Order No. 831 Compliance (Offer Caps)
Mitigation of Locally Committed Resources
Redirect Billing
Mitigated Energy Offer for Regulation Deployment
Adjustment Settlements
Mitigated Start-Up and No-Load Offer Maintenance Cost

Primary Working
Group

Cost Estimate

ORWG
MWG

$10k - 25k
$150-$200K

MWG

$75k-100k

MWG
MWG
MWG
MWG
MWG
RTWG
MWG

$375k - 400k
$100K
$15,342
$474,600
$235,480
TBD
$119,200

MWG

$100,200

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Enhancement Request: OASIS is fundamental to SPP services and its Unplanned C
customers. This clean-up effort would improve the engagement SPP
customers, members, market participants, and stakeholders have
with the SPP OASIS site. Information on SPP's operational services
would be more transparent and I suspect a lot of time would be
saved for everyone engaging with the site. Customers would be able
to find current information instead of sorting through the various
folders, many of which are outdated, on the SPP OASIS.

Medium

$10k - 25k

This is in response to RMS ticket #37749. We would like to see a
method to programmatically download the CSS Output
Reports.Currently we have to download big files and have to run
into connection issueswhen the screen is idle for quite some time
between getting the report anddownloading the report.
Registered Entities request the ability to upload/download data to
the new RAW workbook database via API.
The PPOR Heat Rate curve graph in the MMDD tool is not large
enough to show a MW range that is useful for polynomial curves.
The size of the graph needs to be increased to provide meaningful
value.
The MMDD tool should allow multiple submissions of OCC data up
until the deadline just like the market systems which allows
corrections and changes to be made until the market closes. At
midnight the OCC should take the latest submitted values to use in
its calculations.
Create a read-only user role in the MMDD tool.
Settlements & MMU received a request from an MP to breakdown
the Day-Ahead Must Offer penalty by Settlement Location.

Unplanned C

Medium

$10k - 25k

TEA

Unplanned C

High

$50k - 100k

Tenaska

Unplanned C

High

Over $100k

SPP

Unplanned C

Unknown

Over $100k

AEP

Unplanned C
Unplanned C

High
Low

Over $100k
Up to $10k

AEP

Mitigated Start-Up and No-Load Offer Maintenance Cost

Release +1

Medium

$10k - 25k
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Unplanned C
Programmatic interface to alert members of Repricing
Notifications. This would be in lue of the email currently sent out
and would be fashioned after the notifications for Settlement
Statement publications.
Specifically, the intent of the enhancement is to create the
following:
1.    A web service that sends a notification to Market Participant
listeners to notify that the repricing data is ready
2.    A web service to accept requests and return repricing data to
Market Participants

Page 5 of 29

Level of
Complexity

High

Cost Estimate
Up to $10k

Requesting Party
MCG Energy
Solutions

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Currently we post LMP By Location and MCP to the SPP marketplace Release +2
portal. For consistency we should also post LMP by Bus to the
portal. Only B type pnodes need to be output to the file. The
filename should have the following convention, similar to LMP by SL
and MCP posting:
RTBM-LMP-B-YYYYMMDDHHMM-R[revision number]-RC[reason
code number].csv

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Low

$10k - 25k

Requesting Party

The following columns need to be in the file:
Interval (interval ending CPT)
GMTIntervalEnd
Pnode (Pnode name.. mapping from PNODEID will need to happen)
LMP
MLC
MCC
MEC (calculated as LMP-MLC-MCC)
Post DA & RT public Load data by zone
API to download data published to the Public FTP site

Release +2
Unplanned A

Medium
High

Up to $10k
$10k - 25k

Transmission POD & SINK Locations Mapping Report

Unplanned A

Low

Up to $10k

Add Functionality to send notifications to mobile devices based on Unplanned A
individual user preferences
Annual Public Data Files Zip and Archival - This enhancement will
Unplanned A
include evaluation of current amount of storage space available for
public data and creating a plan to efficiently use available storage
ongoing by creating .zip files for previous years' data and any clean
up, deletion of files as necessary.

High

$10k - 25k

Westar (WRGS)
Monterey SW
(MOSW_X)
Tenaska Power
Services
OG&E

Low

Up to $10k

SPP
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Post a dead buss file for each DA Market operating day - The Energy Unplanned A
Authority (TEA) requests SPP post a public data file of all dead buses
in the DA market for each operating day with the note that at this
time, participants who are spreading two nodes are at risk of being
long or short unintentionally if a source or sink is dead. The public
data file would give participants a better chance of avoiding this
risk.
Publish realized and scheduled circuit breaker outages   Saracen
Unplanned A
Energy Midwest believes circuit breaker outages are having a major
effect on SPP market operations and the market needs this
information to make informed decisions about what is happening in
its marketplace. Other RTOs publish this information both currently
and prospectively, such as ISO-NE, NYISO, PJM, MISO.
Add Weather Overlay to Price Contour Map. OG&E believes that a Unplanned A
combined Price contour/weather map will provide additional value
to MPs as they monitor prices, binding constraints, weather, and
wind impacts. This will allow MPs to monitor weather systems and
prices across the footprint. MPs are doing it currently but with
separate tools. Allowing MPs to monitor fronts and wind traveling
into the footprint and then see how congestion grows west to east
or south to north is added values to allow MPs to communicate
with plant personal the important of being on dispatch instruction.

Low

Up to $10k

The Energy
Authority (TEA)

Low

$25k - 50k

Saracen Energy
Midwest

Low

$10k - 25k

OGE

Request has been made to increase the number of intervals that are Unplanned A
reported as Actuals in the Public Operational_Data/STRF folder
files from 23 hours and 11 intervals (287) to 24 hours/full day of
intervals (288).
Modify "Hourly Load" public data files to post daily vs. once per
Unplanned A
month; planned enhancement will post daily files and create a
monthly zipped file.

Low

Up to $10k

KCPS

Low

Up to $10k

Basin Electric
Power Cooperative
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Set up automation for annual rollups of LMP by Sl, LMP by Bus, and Unplanned A
MCP. These rollups have been created manually in the past, this
task is to automate file creations.
Modify GENMIX: Graphing will reflect total amount for each fuel
Unplanned A
type, file downloads will give split by SELF / MARKET committed for
each fuel type
Summary: Enhance Markets UI to allow right click feature to view Release +2
or edit
Requires MP Code Changes: No.
ENH MUI: Update the Commitment Acknowledgement History
display modified by column to show the certificates user name
instead of the certificate number.
Summary: Create a screen in the Markets UI that lists all of the
Settlement Locations that have a Virtual Bid and/or Offer with the
ability to link to the Virtual Bid/Offer.

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Low

Up to $10k

SPP

Low

Up to $10k

NPPD

Medium

$10k - 25k

Southwestern
Public Service
Company (SPS)

Unplanned B

Medium

$10k - 25k

Unplanned B

High

$25k - 50k

Sesco Trading

Unplanned C

Medium

$10k - 25k

Google Energy, LLC

Requires MP Code Changes: No.
Priority changed to Unplanned B on 03/25/2016 based on SPQM
discussion.
Summary: Clearly highlight the type of Market case (RTBM, DA, or
Mitigation) for which the Market Participant is entering offer curve
data so as to be readily visible to the user.
Requires MP Code Changes: No.
Priority changed to Unplanned C on 03/25/2016 based on SPQM
discussion
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description
Summary: Allow users to submit, delete and query Virtual
Bids/Offers within the same API operation. Today, participants
must submit, delete and query Virtual Bids separately from Virtual
Offers.

Priority Grouping

Unplanned C

Requires MP Code Changes: No. This change would result in new,
optional API operations which would not require MPs to make code
changes.
Summary: Create a Markets UI display and API operations to show Unplanned C
the total output (Energy+Reg Up/Down+Spin/Supp) of a generation
plant.
Requires MP Code Changes: No. The new API operations would be
added as optional which would not require participant code
changes.
Summary: Provide UI page and API operations to retrieve historical Unplanned C
Reserve Cap notifications. The goal is to allow participants to
review the stream of notifications that may have been delivered in
the past.
Requires MP Code Changes: No. The new API operations would be
optional operations which would not require participant system
modifications.
Summary: Add a Markets UI page and API operation to show total Unplanned C
Real-Time LMP per hour.
Requires MP Code Changes: No. There would be new, optional API
operations added. Participants would not be required to make code
changes.
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Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

High

$25k - 50k

XO Energy SW, LP
(XOSW)

High

$10k - 25k

Arkansas Electric
Cooperative
Corporation (AECC)

High

$10k - 25k

SPP

High

$10k - 25k

Arkansas Electric
Cooperative
Corporation (AECC)

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Unplanned C

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Medium

$10k - 25k

Southwestern
Public Service
Company (SPSMMP)

New business process regarding reason code #1 for contingency
Unplanned C
reserve & #3 missing or bad resource SCADA under the
XmptDev5minFlg.
Request to add Total MWs to all pages in the UI containing 24 hours Unplanned C
of MW data. This includes both submitted and result data pages.

High

$25k - 50k

SPSM

Medium

$10k - 25k

Currently, the OperatingDay parameter to
Unplanned C
GetTransactionSummarySetByDay filters on the day the transaction
was submitted, not the market day of the transaction. The market
day of the transaction would be a much more useful parameter.

Low

$10k - 25k

Currently the markets notifications configuration is set to support Unplanned C
TLS1.0. A request has been made to upgrade the servers to support
TLS 1.2. When updating the configuration to support TLS 1.2
backwards compatibility is expected to continue to support TLS 1.0.

Low

Up to $10k

EXGN Chirag
Thaker

This change is proposed to enable the Market to handle unit/load
contingency constraints in a more accurate manner. The primary
member impact will be that if a unit or load is expected to be
disconnected during the contingency of the flowgate (based on
flowgate definition/modeling), then it will no longer receive a
Marginal Congestion Component added to their LMP for that
flowgate.

Medium

$25k - 50k

SPP

Summary: Add new API operations and UI display to provide
aggregated wind forecast.

Requires MP Code Changes: No. This is a new, optional API
operation that does not require MP code changes.

Release +2
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Ability to download a node MW size similar to what CAISO publishes Unplanned A
on thier PNode Listing report on their OASIS

Low

Up to $10k

Predictive LMP forecast in a 55 minute forward look

Low

Up to $10k

Allow members to be able to export Certs and Roles from PROD and Unplanned C
import into MTE.

Medium

$25k - 50k

Anthony.Nairns denverenergygrou
p.com
Shawn McBroom OGE
AECC

Westar requests an SPP modeling enhancement to either make
CROW line/xfmr names consistent with EMS/TCR comment names
for line/xfmrs or vice versa. The line/xfmrs names need to be the
consistent between CROW and EMS/TCR .raw comment names.

Unplanned C

Low

Up to $10k

WRGS

Unplanned C

Unknown

Up to $10k

AEP

Unplanned C

Low

Up to $10k

KCPL

Unplanned A

Would it be possible to automatically export the equipment (lines
and transformer) to a file on a regular basis (1 time a week)? There
is a need to post this info on a FTP site.

Keep the lower environments of CROW more in line with PROD as
far as equipment that is available to submit outages for.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description
The BSS API needs to be enhanced to support up to two major
versions of the Web service at a given point in time.  Versioning
eliminates confusion on which WSDLs/XSDs are supported by
incrementing version numbers for each release that is not
backwards compatible.

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Other

Low

$10k - 25k

Other

Medium

$50k - 100k

Requesting Party

- Minor versions represent backwards compatibility with existing
deployments of the same major version
- Major versions represent significant updates that break
compatibility with the existing Web service deployment

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
MP submitted multiple enhancement requests to the BSS
application and those requests have been broken out into
separate/individual enhancement request. The request covered in
this ticket is the following:  
- Ability to Confirm/Approve Multiple Days and/or Months at a time

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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TEA, ETEC

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Market Participant has requested an enhancement to add a dropdown list for all “location” and buyer + seller” fields in the SPP
Portal. Currently, If “Location” or acronym of “Buyer” or “Seller” is
not known or misspelled, then “error” will populate when trying to
enter a new contract or filter by particular location or company
abbreviation. This goes for any tab in the SPP portal.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Market Participant has requested an enhancement to move the
“Submit Profile Data” button on the Home tab to another location
on the screen. Currently, it is placed between the “Deny Contract”
and “End Contract” buttons. This has caused a few unexpected
accidentals. When you accidentally hit the “Deny Contracts” button
an error is thrown; however, when the “End Contract” button is
accidentally hit, there is no precautionary warning to populate,
where the end result will create the contract highlighted to “end” as
of the current date.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Market Participant has requested an enhancement to filter by a
date range on the Home, Profile Approval and Reporting Tabs in the
BSS UI. Currently, you are only able to filter by a single operating
day. MP would like to have the option to filter by single and/or
multiple days, as well as filter up to a monthly date range.  
Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
Market Participant has requested an enhancement to filter by Asset
Owner/Company on the Home, Profile Approval and Reporting tabs
without being required to indicate buyer or seller information.   

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Market Participant has requested an enhancement to the BSS UI to
display the end date of a contract to be displayed instead of the
following date being displayed as “end date”.   
Impact to MP: This change would eliminate any room for confusion
and save time for the end user.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Low

Up to $10k

TEA

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

AEP

Other

Unknown

Market Participant has requested an enhancement to the BSS UI
Reporting Tab to display the option of hour ending interval instead
of the current AM/PM that is currently displayed on this screen. The
tabs in the BSS UI need to be consistent as the Profile Approval
Screen and the extraction of data out of the Reporting tab show the
hour ending as an interval.    
Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
Market Participant requested additional enhancement to 03-1992
to also add the ability to search BSS by date range for multiple Asset
Owners.

Priority - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
Market Participant requested additional functionality to current
request 03-1789 to also allow multi-day submissions for a group of
Asset Owners instead of just one.

Priority - Other - Additional Information has been requested from
the submitter in order to Score and provide cost analysis and
complexity for this change. Request for closure as we have not
been provided the information requested.
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AEP

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Request to add a confirmation 'pop-up' box when the user selects Other
the 'end contract' button in the BSS Application. The confirmation
box should also allow the analyst to select a termination date other
than the next business day which is currently the default behavior.

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Medium

$25k - 50k

Release +1

High

$50k - 100k

Unplanned C

Unknown

Requesting Party

Priority - O - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

The Schedule 11 Regional Resident Load Charge and Revenue are
not correctly handling the 2a/2b split with the addition of zone 19
on October 2015

Member requested enhancement to provide the schedule 11
charges with the associated upgrade.
Complexity and Cost Estimate can't be provided at this time. This
request is dependent on the automation of another project outside
of Settlements. Once that project is implemented in Q32018 this
ticket can be evaluated for complexity and cost and re-evaluated for
a Settlements release.
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NPPD, ITCM

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Other

Medium

$25k - 50k

Other

Low

$10k - 25k

Requesting Party

Member requested enhancement to update the meter application
and reports (including calibration report) in real-time as meter data
is submitted while the meter windows are open. Currently, the
submitter must wait until the files are picked up before they can see
them and this may take up to 30 minutes depending on when the
file is submitted and when the meter files were last loaded.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Enhance the current Meter Agent Report Card to work similar to the
MP Meter Report to improve performance and usability for the
MPs.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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SPP

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

High

$50k - 100k

KMEA, WFEC,
GRDA, KCPL, AEP

Other

Low

Up to $10k

MECB

MP and MA need the ability to see/validate submitted meter data
and calibration between Initial and Final meter windows. Currently,
the reports are locked and not updated between Initial and Final
Meter Windows. Some MPs have requested a way to view what has
been submitted and calibration that is continually updated and not
stopped, but at a minimum, they need additional time for validation
prior to close of Final. This request should also include the ability for
the MA and MP to see the final version of the meter reports as of
each approved settlement run (Initial, Final, and Resettlements)
without the latest run overriding the prior reports.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Request to update the meter status field whenever the meter file is
picked up and processed. Currently, this status is set upon upload of
data and is never updated to reflect current status as the
settlement system picks them up for processing. Not having this
field updated not only makes it confusing (appears that the meter
file was not picked up for the final), but makes this field useless to
the end user.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

SPP

Other

Low

Up to $10k

SPS

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

GRDA

Enhancement to provide a new MA Interchange Report with
additional details. The report will have the hourly information at a
high level with the option to drill down into a 5 minute level.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Add the ability to the GUI for processing Meter Requests within
Soap Envelopes. This would allow the same file to be processed
both via API or GUI without any changes. Currently, API requires the
envelope and Portal requires it NOT be there. It would be much
simpler if the same format could be used for both.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

MP request to display summarized data at the hourly interval in the
Meter Agent Report Card. Currently, only a detailed display is
available.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Medium

$25k - 50k

GRDA

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

Westar Energy

MP request to add a filter for Meter Locations based on the Meter
Agent/MP logged into the Portal. Currently, ALL meter locations for
a Meter Agent are displayed and some have around 100.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Create a report that summarizes the submitted data and indicates
when meter data has not been submitted. This report needs to be
available to both a Meter Agent Level Role and also a MP/AO Level
Role.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Other

Low

Up to $10k

The Notifications API needs to be enhanced to support up to two
Other
major versions of the Web service at a given point in
time.  Versioning eliminates confusion on which WSDLs/XSDs are
supported by incrementing version numbers for each release that is
not backwards compatible.

Low

$10k - 25k

Members have requested the ability to know when the last time an
OD has been updated for meter processing via the portal. Since the
meter process runs every 30 - 60 - minutes, we are requesting that
the report show the last time the meter file has processed for that
given day to display on report output and if window is open/closed.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

- Minor versions represent backwards compatibility with existing
deployments of the same major version
- Major versions represent significant updates that break
compatibility with the existing Web service deployment

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Requesting Party
WFEC

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Other

Low

Up to $10k

Other

Unknown

$10k - 25k

Settlements notifications are currently the only type of notification
from the Marketplace systems that don't include a MP/AO name in
the actual message XML. All other notifications that we are aware of
have the MP/AO name in the message. For consistency purposes
and to make sure that all messages from SPP contain all the
information they need for their context, we would like the MP/AO
identifier to be added to the Settlements Notification XSD and
messages, rather than leaving it to the vendor/MP's system to add
that information as metadata when the messages are persisted on
our side.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Market Participant has requested an update to the Settlement
Calendar to include a reason for resettlements. It was also
suggested that a business aid be created to include a master list of
resettlements and a reason for the resettlement.
Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Requesting Party
Tenaska

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

High

$50k - 100k

WFEC

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

AECC

Unplanned C

Low

$10k - 25k

SPP

Would it be possible to provide the IM settlements calendar in XML
format? Our meter submission is automatic and being able to
import the "due dates" to compare against would be very handy,
especially during the holiday adjusted schedules. I'm doing this with
the Excel version, but due to the nature of Excel, it's a semi-manual
process."
Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

Member requested enhancement to the existing ARRTCR public
report to add a funding percentage to the daily tab. It was originally
requested that an hourly tab also be provided in this report,
however, the data currently is calculated at the daily level so hourly
details are not available.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

A report to provide the Market Participants the costs allocated to
the market caused by the GFA Carve Outs and the hourly/monthly
deviations associated with the GFA Carve Out Schedules'
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Other

Medium

$25k - 50k

Freepoint
Commodities
(FRPT)

Other

Medium

$10k - 25k

KCPL

MP requested enhancement to provide a method for MPs to
retrieve the weekly invoices in PDF format
programmatically. Currently, only the XML version of the invoice is
available via the API.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.

The invoice is created by Market Participant and if that MP has
more than one Asset Owner there are currently no subtotals by
Asset Owner. There is only a Grand Total for the MP. We have to
provide these invoice to auditors and regulatory bodies and they
would really like to see a subtotal by AO on the PDF invoice so they
don't have to manually add up all the lines to come up with one.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

The Settlements Reports API needs to be enhanced to support up to Other
two major versions of the Web service at a given point in
time.  Versioning eliminates confusion on which WSDLs/XSDs are
supported by incrementing version numbers for each release that is
not backwards compatible.

Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Low

$10k - 25k

Low

$10k - 25k

- Minor versions represent backwards compatibility with existing
deployments of the same major version
- Major versions represent significant updates that break
compatibility with the existing Web service deployment

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
In the Reports API, modify the valid values for settlement types to Other
adhere to RR259.  Per RR259: The new scheduled (regular)
settlement types will be S7, S53, and S120. Resettlements will be
R<ddd>, where <ddd> represents the number of days after the
operating day in which the resettlement is posted. This change will
take effect with the first settlement date posted with the new
system - 5/1/19. This means for settlements that post prior to
5/1/19 - the original settlement types will still exist (I, F, R1-R12).  

The modified Reports API will support the old and new settlement
types.

Release - Other - This ticket is currently being considered for
implementation with the Replacement Project.
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Requesting Party

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

Other
Members would like for API functionality to be added for
transmission settlements. Also, we would like to have the ability to
assign multiple functions to one certificate (like the current IM; "SPP
model" per Annette Holbert).
API functions for:
Transmission Owner/Customer settlement statements
- XML
- Daily PTP
- Monthly NITS
- Schedule 2
MVARHr, NITS/CP, Direct Assignment, and Schedule 12 file
submissions
XML Inputs - Network billing inputs designed to dictate monthly
settlement which includes DA, NITS, S12 load designations per
specific TSR and / or customer.
Prior Year Coincident Peak - Prior Year monthly assessment and net
energy load per zone (Schedule 11)
Coincident Peak & Prior Year Coincident Peak - Prior Year zonal load
for SCH9
MVAR Data - Megavahr data for Schedule 2 (reactive compensation)
Zone 19 XML Inputs - Network billing inputs designed to dictate
monthly settlement which includes DA NITS S12 load designations
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Level of
Complexity

Medium

Cost Estimate
$50k - 100k

Requesting Party
WFEC

Open Enhancements - All
Enhancement Description

Priority Grouping

MP requested enhancement to provide a method for MPs to
Unplanned C
retrieve the weekly invoices in PDF format programmatically.
Currently, only the XML version of the invoice is available via the
API.
Market Participant requested the ability for the Settlement Reports - Current Release
View Settlement Statements role to be specified at the Asset Owner
level, as opposed to only the Market Participant level.
Per SPQM 03-25-16, move to Unplanned C if approved by the SUG.
09/12/16: Per multiple MP requests, moved to Unplanned A.
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Level of
Complexity

Cost Estimate

Requesting Party

Medium

$25k - 50k

Freepoint
Commodities
(FRPT)

Medium

$10k - 25k

Tenaska, TEA

Projects
Project Name

Freeze Date Replacement Allocation Calculator
SPP.org Migration of Support and Maintenance

MOS 1.24
Revenue Requirements & Rates (RRR) Automation

CROW Upgrade
TCR Release 3.1
MSS 2.13
TSS 1.8
EDST Enhancements

Settlement Systems Replacement

Day Ahead FFE Exchange
Order 831 Offer Cap Compliance

Reliability Communications Tool

Project Description

Cost Estimate

Plan to move all components of SPP.org from current hosting vendor to In flight
Microsoft Cloud technology to improve reliability and enhance Member
experience.
This release will address RR116, RR142, enhancements and defects.
In flight
Improve productivity and quality by reducing risk from manual tasks
In flight
involved in processing Transmission Owner data (TO data) into the RRR
file for Regulatory and the data entry from the RRR file for Settlements
$60,000
In flight
In flight
In flight
TBD

This release will address several enhancements and defects.
This release will address several enhancements and defects.
This release will address several enhancements and defects.
During testing for the Engineering Hub project, some enhancements
were identified for the Engineering Data Submittal Tool (EDST). This
project will complete a number of those enhancements prior to MDWG
and Resource Adequacy 2019 submittal periods (August and October,
respectively).
This project will replace the current market and transmission
In flight
settlement systems with a custom designed single high performance
scalable system solution.

Design and Implement a DA FFE exchange mechanism
$344,004
FERC has issued Order 831 that allows offers above $1,000/MWh when In flight
the fuel costs necessitate those offers. The current market software
does not allow an offer to be submitted above $1,000/MWh. This
project will enable submission by Market Participants above the offer
cap.
Creation of a real-time, web-based, two-way communication tool is
TBD
needed for Reliability Coordination to relay messages to members and
between members.

Targeted
Implementation
Date

01/01/19
04/30/18

05/01/18
09/28/18

12/31/18
08/31/18
04/19/18
03/27/18

5/1/19

12/31/18
5/1/19

1/1/19

Projects
Project Name

Storage and Distributed Generation

Replicated Data Server

Project Description

FERC has issued a NOPR for rule changes regarding the modeling of
TBD
Storage Devices and the use of Distributed Generation. The NOPR
shows additional data that would need to be accepted and used in the
Commitment and Dispatch logic. The timing of a final rule is unknown
at this time.
Increase the capabilities of and the support level commitment for the TBD
Replicated Data Server in support of SPP Transmission Operator's
compliance with the new TOP-001 standard.

Cost Estimate

Targeted
Implementation
Date

9/1/18

12/31/18

SPP Member-Facing Member-Impacting
Portfolio Report Summary
REVISION REQUESTS
In Flight/Current Release

CURRENT QUARTER

Pending
Estimated Cost of Pending Items
ENHANCEMENT REQUESTS
In Flight/Current Release

Pending
Estimated Cost of Pending Items

0

18

17

1

Column1

Estimated Cost of Pending Items

$2,000,327

•
•
•
•

-$83,705

Column1
16

7

9

89

91

-2

$2,830,000

$2,935,000

-$105,000

8

14

-6

7

6

1

$404,004

$404,004

$0

Column1

Column1

Notes and Qualifications

•

CHANGE
0

$1,916,622

Pending

PROJECTS
In Flight/Current Release

PREVIOUS QUARTER
0

This list is not all inclusive of all SPP planned Revision Requests, enhancement requests or portfolio
projects. Specific criteria was used for this report to only include MI and MF items, RRs with system or
process changes and large technology projects.
For any item in flight or in a current release, the cost estimates are not included.
For any project or RR, any cost estimates given are the internal impact assessment provided (which
includes SPP resource estimates as well as external costs).
For enhancements, any cost estimates given are a high-level estimate in a dollar range and include
internal costs.
Items shaded in blue in the enhancements requests section indicate items that are new since the last
quarterly report was published.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
CREDIT PRACTICES WORKING GROUP
Report to the Finance Committee
March 15, 2018

Organizational Roster
The following persons are members of the CPWG:
Mr. Mark Holler, Chair
Ms. Terri Wendlandt, Vice Chair
Mr. Malcolm Booker
Mr. Ronnie Hall
Mr. Michael Malone
Ms. Mary Meier
Mr. Robert Schleissinger
Mr. Matthew Simon
Ms. Cassandra Strange

Tenaska Power Service Co.
Westar Energy, Inc.
Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Kansas City Power & Light
Heartland Consumers Power District
Omaha Public Power District
Xcel Energy Services
Basin Electric Power Cooperative
OG&E

Activity Update
The CPWG has been engaged for some time looking into possible enhancements to the calculation of
TCR Reference Prices. The Group has been analyzing data to determine if there is possible
overcollateralization for TCRs. The acceptance of a possible alternative was voted on today and was
unanimously approved. The CPWG will be drafting language for a Revision Request to be voted on in an
upcoming meeting.
The CPWG has also recently approved enhancements to the Letter of Credit format which have gone
through the stakeholder process. A FERC filing to incorporate these enhancements is being prepared
with an anticipated filing date of early April.
Upcoming Meetings
April 19, 2018
Additional Information
Below are the meeting minutes for first quarter 2018.

Southwest Power Pool
CREDIT PRACTICES WORKING GROUP
January 18, 2018
Teleconference
Minutes

Agenda Item 1 – Call to Order
Mark Holler called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. The following members were in attendance:
Mark Holler (Tenaska); Terri Wendlandt (Westar); Ronnie Hall (KCPL); Michael Malone (HCPD);
and Cassandra Strange (OGE). Also in attendance were: Justin Riddell and Yohan Sutjandra
(TEA); Jamie Johnson and Jill Jones (MEAN); Jeff Bieker (Sunflower); Keith Hamilton (Powerex);
Shawn Geil (KEPCo); Nick Becvar (ACES); and Scott Smith, Phil McCraw, Jared Barker, Patty
Kelley, and Erin Brown (SPP).
Agenda Item 2 – Approval of Minutes from September 2017 Meeting
Mark Holler asked if there were changes to the September meeting minutes (CPWG Minutes
20170921). Mike Malone made a motion to accept the minutes and Mark Holler seconded. The
minutes were unanimously accepted as amended.
Agenda Item 3 – LC Language Change Update
Phil McCraw advised the group that RR 249 had been unanimously approved by the Finance
Committee, RTWG, MWG, and MOPC. It is on the consent agenda at the Board meeting
scheduled for January 30. Once approved there, SPP anticipates a FERC filing in late February
and a late April implementation.
Agenda Item 4 – Q3 and Q4 2017 Credit Metrics
Erin Brown presented the metrics to the group. There were no significant changes noted.
Agenda Item 5 – TCR Reference Prices
Jared Barker presented a comparison of the collateral requirements from the 2017-2018 annual
TCR auction using current reference prices and the proposed reference prices. There was a
significant decrease in the collateral requirements under the proposed reference prices. After
discussion it was decided that further analysis would be conducted to compare collateral
requirements with monthly settled/invoiced amounts per market participant to evaluate risk
coverage. It is anticipated this analysis will to be presented at the next meeting.
Agenda Item 5 – Next Meeting February 15
Mark Holler advised the group that the next meeting will be February 15.
Agenda Item 6 – Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Phil McCraw, Secretary

Southwest Power Pool
CREDIT PRACTICES WORKING GROUP
February 15, 2018
Teleconference
Minutes

Agenda Item 1 – Call to Order
Mark Holler called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. The following members were in attendance:
Mark Holler (Tenaska); Terri Wendlandt (Westar); Ronnie Hall (KCPL); Michael Malone (HCPD);
Mary Meier (OPPD) Matthew Simon (Basin) and Cassandra Strange (OGE). Also in attendance
were: Justin Riddell and Yohan Sutjandra (TEA); Christi Nicolay (Macquarie); Jamie Johnson
(MEAN); Jason Mazigian (Basin); Jeff Bieker (Sunflower); Nick Becvar (ACES); and Scott Smith,
Phil McCraw, Jared Barker, Patty Kelley, and Erin Brown (SPP).
Agenda Item 2 – Approval of Minutes from January Meeting
Mark Holler asked if there were changes to the January meeting minutes (CPWG Minutes
20180118). Mike Malone advised his company needed to be changed to HCPD. With that change
he made a motion to accept the minutes and Mark Holler seconded. The minutes were
unanimously accepted as amended.
Agenda Item 3 – LC Language Change Update
Postponed to another meeting.
Agenda Item 4 – TCR Reference Prices
Jared Barker presented a summary of the data that showed where there is over and under
collateralization comparing the current and proposed methodologies. In a future meeting the
group would like to see the total over collateralized amounts and the number of credit holders
appropriately collateralized. After discussion there was a straw poll taken with all voting members
indicating they were in favor of moving forward with additional information. Members should
anticipate a vote on this item potentially at the next meeting.
Agenda Item 5 – Next Meeting March 15
Mark Holler advised the group that the next meeting will be March 15.
Agenda Item 6 – Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:35 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Phil McCraw, Secretary

Southwest Power Pool
CREDIT PRACTICES WORKING GROUP
March 15, 2018
Teleconference
Minutes

Agenda Item 1 – Call to Order
Mark Holler called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. The following members were in attendance:
Mark Holler (Tenaska); Terri Wendlandt (Westar); Ronnie Hall (KCPL); McCord Stoward as proxy
for Michael Malone (HCPD); Mary Meier (OPPD) Matthew Simon (Basin) and Robert
Schleissinger (Xcel) Also in attendance were: Yohan Sutjandra (TEA); Jamie Johnson (MEAN);
Jason Mazigian (Basin); Jeff Bieker (Sunflower); Nick Becvar (ACES); Matt Robson (Sesco); Matt
Holstein (Duke) and Scott Smith, Phil McCraw, Jared Barker, and Dendy Collier (SPP).
Agenda Item 2 – Approval of Minutes from February Meeting
Mark Holler asked if there were changes to the February meeting minutes (CPWG Minutes
20180215). Ronnie Hall made a motion to accept the minutes and Malcolm Booker seconded.
The minutes were unanimously accepted without amendment.
Agenda Item 3 – LC Language Change Update
Phil McCraw advised the Group that a FERC filing could still happen by the end of the first
quarter but would most likely be in early April.
Agenda Item 4 – TCR Reference Prices
Jared Barker presented additional data that showed the number of market participants and
amounts over and under collateralized using the current and proposed methodologies. The Group
discussed alternate proposals that had been previously reviewed. After discussion a motion was
made by Malcolm Booker to move forward to draft credit policy changes and an RR that would be
moved through the stakeholder process.
Agenda Item 5 – DC Tie Effects on TCR Reference Prices
Scott Smith introduced the topic to the Group. There will likely be changes required to the way
TCR reference prices will be calculated if the TCR source and sink crosses SPP balancing
authorities. This will necessitate changes to the credit policy to accommodate new components
used to calculate and settle congestion costs. This issue will be discussed in future meetings as
policies are finalized elsewhere.
Agenda Item 6 – Next Meeting April 19
Mark Holler advised the group that the next meeting will be April 19. Terri Wendlandt requested
that the Group look at accepting surety bonds as collateral. She will get an insurer to call into the
next meeting. Jared Barker advised the 911 email was being replaced. SPP will send out a
message to the CPWG exploder list on how to register for the new email. Mark Holler requested
that SPP present the TCR timeline as a refresher at the next meeting.
Agenda Item 7 – Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Phil McCraw, Secretary

